


A beautiful journey began 20 years ago. 
It was driven by a compelling desire to reach 
every man’s dream destination – total wellness, 
fi nancial freedom and lasting happiness. 

Those who shared the dream created 
Best World. For 20 years since its founding in 
1990, Best World has been empowering lives 
across countries and cultures where 
it operates. 
 
We invite you to come on board and become 
a part of this great expedition of a humble 
local business that has made its mark as an 
established Asian enterprise and now ready 
to take on the world!



THE
BEST
WAY 



Since 1990, Best World seeks to become 
the only Singapore listed direct selling 
company that is committed to build 
distinctive values, strong brands, well 
rounded learning culture and proven 
business platform. We provide all these 
to motivated individuals who want to 
achieve fi nancial freedom and an improved 
quality of life by being a network business 
owner for a minimal investment at a time 
when entrepreneurship bears high risks 
and demands a signifi cant capital outlay.

Over the last two decades, our platform 
for entrepreneurship has inspired and 
empowered the lives of countless people 
across the region. We have established 
a fi rm foothold in South East Asia and East 
Asia. As we mark our 20th year milestone, 
we are on track and remain focused in our 
market development goals – to strengthen 
our presence in Asia and reach out to the 
rest of the world.



20 AND 
GOING 

PLACES



The Group delivered its 6th consecutive profi table 
year since its listing in 2004 despite the challenging 
economic climate. For FY2009, we achieved 
$73.0 million in sales and $9.7 million in net profi t. 
Our fundamental fi scal strength and prudent 
approach to investments, a strong pipeline of 
innovative products, and a renewed focus on 
enhancing our business systems and processes, 
enabled us to respond to changing economic 
environment with timely, decisive moves to outrun 
our challenges.

We will continue to grow by delivering appropriate 
fi nancial performance while positioning Best World 
for sustainable profi table growth over the long 
term. As the Group has been able to maintain 
profi tability for this fi nancial year, the Board of 
Directors is recommending a fi nal and special 
dividend of 1 cent per ordinary share coupled with 
an interim dividend of 1.2 cents , representing a 
dividend payout of 46.9%of net profi t.

Clear Skies Ahead
For 20 years since its founding, Best World has 
been empowering lives across the region through 
excellent quality products, ideal platform for 
entrepreneurship and an enriching culture for our 
people’s well-rounded growth and development. 
We are determined to live out this unfolding story 
as our company continues to grow. We take great 
pride in our brand position and value as it sets us 
apart from industry competitors. 

Your support has enabled us to pursue these 
opportunities to our people around the globe 
achieve their potential. We thank you for being 
part of this journey.

As we march forward, we are determined to 
build a word-class company and global brands – 
focusing on creating brand awareness, increasing 
membership base, venturing into new markets, 
exploring strategic business alliance opportunities 
and building our people’s capacities to cope 
with the dynamics of global competition. We are 
well-positioned for the future, with our strong 
fundamentals, loyal consumer base, innovative 
products, powerful brands, operational excellence 
and strong fi nancial fundamentals. With these, 
we move into the future to seize our opportunities 
with confi dence.

Here’s to our journey ahead – Asian Focus, 
Global Reach. Cheers!

Dr Dora Hoan
Group CEO & 
Group Managing Director

Dr Doreen Tan
Chairman

20 Years of Journey
“ From a little-known Singapore start-up, Best World has established a 
fi rm foothold across the Asia Pacifi c region and grew from a local SME 
into an established Asian Enterprise.”



INNER
HARMONY



Avance is a proven health brand that believes 
in the possibility of total healthy living. It 
achieves this goal by adopting a preventive 
approach to well-being. Avance’s range of 
products is built on three main guarantees 
of Effi cacy, Purity & Concentration. 
www.avanceforlife.com

Optrimax is a breakthrough weight-
management programme that is formulated 
on the premise of delivering results that are 
effective and sustainable. Much emphasis is 
placed on adopting a holistic approach through 
a combination of a healthy diet, reduced intake 
of calories and regular exercises.
www.optrimax.com.sg

With its pursuit of what makes great food, 
Foodphilo constantly innovates its products, 
based on the brand promises of health, taste 
and naturalness, thus turning cravings into 
a delightful experience.
www.foodphilo.com

Inner Harmony
“ Our health supplement and weight management products give your 
body vital nutrients and help you stay in shape and optimum health.”



OUTER
HARMONY



DR’s Secret/DRS Seager is a revolutionary 
skincare range that has been received with 
much enthusiasm in over 15 countries in Asia. 
Infused with skin-loving ingredients to give 
the skin a lightening and rejuvenating boost, 
Asian women are now able to regain their 
youth and beauty with confi dence.
www.drs-secret.com

Through innovations in biotechnology 
combined with groundbreaking research 
to harness both therapeutic and aesthetic 
properties of the purest, mildest natural 
ingredients, PentaLab is an all-natural hair 
and body care line that emphasises balanced 
health and personal well-being.
www.penta-lab.com

Miraglo’s patented ultrafi ne microfi bres are 
designed to go between the keratinised 
cells of the epidermis, lifting these dead cells 
delicately with precision and removing 99% 
of the impurities on the skin surface. Let 
Miraglo unveils your skin’s miracle glow.
www.miraglo.com.sg

Outer Harmony
“ Our skincare and personal care products restore and recondition 
your skin thus transforming it to reveal your natural beauty.”



LIFESTYLE
HARMONY



We live in a polluted environment. Be it the 
air we breathe or water we consume, we 
are exposed to elements that can harm our 
well-being. UberAir offers a series of air-
enhancing equipment, so that you can enjoy 
the goodness of the great outdoors indoor, 
making it the healthiest place to be in. 
www.uber-air.com

PureFlo is a brand name that epitomises 
pristine living. The scientifi cally proven fi ltration 
system makes the direct consumption of 
tap water safe and hassle-free by removing 
impurities while retaining essential minerals. 
In short – drinking straight from the tap is 
now pure joy.
www.purefl o.com.sg

TM

Lifestyle Harmony
“ Our healthcare equipments are specially developed to protect 
you from the impurities of our environment and encourage you 
to a healthy lifestyle.”



GO
WITH A 
WINNER



If you’re looking for a company to share your 
vision and build your business legacy, choose 
a winner with continuous track record in 
business excellence and good news to share.

Some awards we have garnered 
in 2009 include:

• Singapore Prestige Brand Award 
Overall winner in the category of
Citibusiness Regional Brand

 BWL

• Singapore Prestige Brand Award 
Winner in the category of 
Citibusiness Regional Brand

 BWL

• Singapore Prestige Brand Award 
Winner in the category of 
Established Brand

 BWL

• SuperBrands Singapore 
Choice 2009/2010
Avance



SINGAPORE



Singapore
“ Our BWL brand won Overall winner in the 
category of Citibusiness Regional brand 
at the Singapore Prestige Award in 2009. 
BWL also was a winner in the category of 
Established brand.”

Singapore remained among the top 3 markets in 2009, with a 
contribution of $13.3 million amounting to 18.2% of the Group’s 
revenue. The Singapore market performed better in 2H2009 
compared to 1H2009 as consumer sentiments improved in the 
latter half of 2009. We will continue to increase brand awareness 
to drive business and introduce more value-added products to 
our consumers to improve our competiveness in this challenging 
environment.

LOCATION

1°17’N
103°50’E
TIME

GMT +8
AREA

710km2

POPULATION

4.99m
CAPITAL

Singapore
DISTANCE FROM AIRPORT

17.2km
CURRENCY

Singapore
Dollar
LOCATION

Best World Lifestyle Singapore
480, Lorong 6 Toa Payoh
#15-00, HDB HUB East Wing
Singapore 310480

Tel (65) 6342 0888
Fax (65) 6748 7970



MALAYSIA



Malaysia
“ Malaysia faced challenges from cautious 
consumer spending since the economy 
downturn began in 2009 but as of third 
quarter, revenue has slowly recovered to 
the level of 2008. As the Group continues 
to introduce new products and stepped 
up members recruitment initiatives, we 
expect to see improvements in our Malaysia 
business ahead.”

Malaysia suffered lower revenue to $11.2 million in FY2009, due to 
lower consumer spending as a result of economy downturn. On a full 
year basis, Malaysia has displayed consistent growth most quarters 
of FY2009. It remains the Group’s third largest market accounting for 
15.4% of total Group’s revenue.
 
To rejuvenate the business, the company initiated stronger marketing 
and promotional campaigns, more intensive product training and 
building brand awareness and will continue to monitor the market 
for growth opportunities.

LOCATION

2°30’N
112°30’E
TIME

GMT +8
AREA

329845km2

POPULATION

28.3m
CAPITAL

Kuala
Lumpur
DISTANCE FROM AIRPORT

57km
CURRENCY

Ringgit
LOCATION

Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd.
No. 11 Jalan Radin Anum,
Bandar Baru,Sri Petaling
57000 Kuala Lumpur Malaysia

Tel (60) 3 9057 1133
Fax (60) 3 9057 2158

Johore Branch:
141 Jalan Danga Taman Nusa 
Bestari Dua 1/5
Skudai 81300 Johore Bahru
Malaysia

Tel (60) 7 5588 578
Fax (60) 7 5567479



INDONESIA



Indonesia
“ Indonesia continues to be the Group’s 
biggest revenue contributor, accounting 
for 29.8% of the Group’s revenue or $21.8 
million and the most numbers of Lifestyle 
centres spread across the vast country.”

In Indonesia, our sales performance was temporarily impacted during 
the third quarter of 2009 due to regulatory and import challenges. 
This has since been resolved as the Group adopt the strategy of 
further engaging the regulatory authorities so as to develop a better 
understanding of the changes. The Group’s efforts came to fruition 
and has to date, obtained registration approval for more than 10 
key products. These new product licenses and the constant rollout 
of new strategies since 3Q2009 were very well received by the 
distributors and market, with sales in 4Q2009 improving 82.9% 
to $2.4 million from $1.3 million in 3Q2009. We expect to see 
improvements in our Indonesian business performance in the years 
to come.

LOCATION

5°00’S
120°00’E
TIME

GMT +7
AREA 

1919440km2

POPULATION

230.0m
CAPITAL

Jakarta
DISTANCE FROM AIRPORT

20km
CURRENCY

Rupiah
LOCATION

PT Best World Indonesia
Menara BCA 36th fl oor, 
Suite 3602 – 03
JI. MH Thamrin No 11
Jakarta 10310

Tel (6221) 2358 7755
Fax (6221) 2358 7758



THAILAND



Thailand
“ The continuous investment in our people 
and in brand building has proven fruitful 
in 2009. BWL Thailand will continue this 
growth momentum and lay the necessary 
foundation for future business growth.”

Thailand displayed a strong growth despite the local political and 
economic tension achieving revenue growth of 346.4% in FY2009. 
Revenue contribution year-on-year increased from $2.2 million to 
$9.6 million, accounting for 13.2% of the Group’s revenue. Their 
solid performance is attributed to an aggressive membership drive 
campaign and positive acceptance to our Drs’ Seagar skincare line 
during the year.

LOCATION

13°45’N 
100°29’E
TIME

GMT +7
AREA

514000km2

POPULATION

62.0m
CAPITAL

Bangkok
DISTANCE FROM AIRPORT

30km
CURRENCY

Baht
LOCATION

BWL (Thailand) 
Company Limited
Muang Thai Phatra Complex
Tower 2, Rachadapisek Road
26 Floor, 252/123 (C) and 
235/124 (D), 10320 Bangkok
Thailand

Tel (66) 2 693 3889
Fax (66) 2 693 3880



HONG KONG



Hong Kong
“ Hong Kong market continues to grow 
marginally in 2009 despite a highly 
competitive and dynamic business 
environment.”

Turnover increased 2.0% as compared to 2008, as local currency 
exchange rate was lower than previous year. BWL Hong Kong 
continues their commitment by being a caring company to 
reduce waste, save energy and improve air quality.

LOCATION

22°15’N
114°10’E
TIME

GMT +8
AREA

1104km2

POPULATION

7.1m
CAPITAL

Hong Kong
DISTANCE FROM AIRPORT

34km
CURRENCY

Hong Kong
Dollar
LOCATION

Best World Lifestyle (HK) 
Company Limited 
Room 1402-03, 14/F 
Causeway Bay Plaza 1 
489 Hennessy Road 
Causeway Bay 
Hong Kong 

Tel (852) 3583 1838
Fax (852) 3583 0118



TAIWAN



Taiwan
“ 2009 was marked by positive strides in 
strategic marketing and aggressive brand 
building to maintain growth momentum in 
the face of increasing market competition.”

2008/2009 was a year of consolidation for BWL Taiwan. With 
a new Country Manager on board, the organisational practices 
were reviewed and reshaped, to lay stronger foundation for future 
growth. Taiwan achieved a revenue growth of 34.7% for FY2009 
due to increasing demand for our skincare ranges and increasing 
membership. To celebrate their third year in business, BWL held a 
dinner gala which pumped up distributors’ morale to a higher level. 
BWL Taiwan continues to expand their membership base, further 
enhance market penetration and strengthen ties with distributors.

LOCATION

23°46’N
121°0’E
TIME

GMT +8
AREA

35980km2

POPULATION

23.0m
CAPITAL

Taipei
DISTANCE FROM AIRPORT

40km
CURRENCY

New Taiwan
Dollar
LOCATION

Best World Lifestyle 
(Taiwan) Co., Ltd
31F, 160 Section 1
Taichung Kang Road
Taichung 40354, Taiwan

Tel (886) 4 3601 8188
Fax (886) 4 3601 0289

40km
CURRENCY

New Taiw
Dollar
LOCATION

Best World Lifestyle
(Taiwan) Co., Ltd
31F, 160 Section 1
Taichung Kang Road
Taichung 40354, Taiwan

Tel (886) 4 3601 8188
Fax (886) 4 3601 0289



CHINA



China
“ During the year, our retail business in 
China improved 41.3% to $2.9 million 
in 2009. To further augment customer 
services and strengthen brand 
awareness, we deployed professionally 
trained product advisors to attract sales 
opportunities.”

China’s dynamic growth is attributable to our strategy of increasing 
competiveness in the market, increasing brand awareness and 
developing a framework to foster affi nity and loyalty among our 
consumers. In October 2009, we have announced the closure of 
our Hunan subsidiary and assigned a third party agency to continue 
our retail business. Although revenue consolidated by the Group is 
based on a lower export price as opposed to selling price previously, 
the Group can now focus on fi nding better investment opportunities 
and business development for growth in this market.

LOCATION

35°00’N
105°00’E
TIME

GMT +8
AREA

9640821km2

POPULATION

1.3b
CAPITAL

Beijing
DISTANCE FROM AIRPORT

32km
CURRENCY

Ren Min Bi
LOCATION

Best World (Qingdao) Health 
Sciences Company Limited
Chang Jiang Zhong Xin
No. 517, Qingdao Economic and
Technological Development Zone,
Chang Jiang Zhong Road, 2103,
Postal code 266555



TRAVELLING
PARTNERS
WANTED



Premium lifestyle brands build enduring 
relationships. It has taken Best World two 
decades to have come this far. As we scan the 
horizon for growth opportunities and success-
minded partners, we invite you to join us as we 
plot the next expedition.

Call us. 
Email us. 
Visit us.

Our doors are always open for you.



an EPIGRAM design and production

Rest of the World



BEST WORLD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
1 CHANGI NORTH STREET 1 LOBBY 2, SINGAPORE 498789 

TEL +65 6899 0088   FAX +65 6542 1533
www.bestworld.com.sg
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Best World International Limited specialises 
in the development of health and wellness 
product, which, in turn, are distributed 
through our direct selling channel. Founded 
in 1990 with a fi rm commitment to provide 
the best quality products to enhance our 
customers lives, Best World has since 
evolved into one of the leading companies 
in the health and wellness industry. Best 
World became the fi rst direct selling 
company to be listed in the Singapore 
Stock exchange in July 2004. 

Leveraging on our 3P strategy for 
consistent growth, we strive to improve 
the well-being of our customers with 
premium quality PRODUCTS, we devote 
ourselves to fulfi lling the dreams of aspiring 
entrepreneurs through our international 
network PLAN, ultimately cultivating well-
rounded PEOPLE in Best World. 

Best World has since established a 
presence in Malaysia, Indonesia, Vietnam, 
Thailand, Taiwan, Hong Kong, China and 
Australia and will continue to expand 
outside Asia-Pacifi c in the future. 



Financial Highlights

2009 Membership by
Geographical Segment (%)

Overall Membership Growth

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

210,630

186,759

148,428

99,708

68,577

 Lifestyle Centres
 Regional Centres
 Distribution Centres

Growth Of Centres

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

88 11 50

92 11 18

75 11 5

54 10

37 9

Revenue (S$’000)

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

72,956

96,063

102,180

77,114

55,098

Net Profit (S$’000)

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

9,671

10,626

13,400

11,861

8,464

Profit Before Tax from Continuing Operations (S$’000)

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

11,389

13,333

17,208

15,617

11,755

35.6

23.6

26.3

14.5

 Singapore
 Malaysia
 Indonesia
 Others

2009 Revenue  by
Geographical Segment (%)

29.8

18.2

15.423.4

13.2

 Singapore
 Malaysia
 Indonesia
 Thailand
 Others
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Guiding Mentors

Dr Dora Hoan 
Group CEO &
Group Managing Director
Dr Hoan, Founder of the Group, 
is a highly experienced direct 
selling expert with more than 
30 years of involvement in the 
industry and a strong academic 
background holding a PhD in 
Business Administration from 
Western Pacifi c University – 
USA. She is the key driver for 
the Group’s Corporate and 
Market Development. She leads 
strategic planning for Business
Development and Marketing 
System. She also oversees 
the Group’s Human Resource 
Management and Development.

Dr Hoan enjoys a wide 
reputation as one of Singapore’s 
top female entrepreneurs and 
also takes active  leadership 
roles in various associations and 

grassroots organisations.
She has received numerous 
awards for her achievement 
in entrepreneurship. She was 
awarded as one of the Top 8 
“ASEAN Outstanding Women 
Entrepreneurs” during the 18th 
ASEAN Global Summit for 
Women held in Hanoi, Vietnam 
in June 2008. 

Dr Doreen Tan 
Chairman
Dr Tan, also a founder of 
the Group, has 30 years 
of experience in the direct 
selling industry. She has a 
rich professional knowledge 
of nutrition and dermatology 
and holds a degree in Applied 
Nutrition from the American 
Academy of Nutrition, an 
Honorary PhD from 
Kennedy Western University, 
USA and holds a Doctor of 

Naturopathy in Canyon 
College, USA.

At Best World, she heads 
product development and 
product knowledge trainings. 
She has a strong belief in 
holistic health and imparts 
her experience through 
seminar trainings and 
counseling services. Her deep 
understanding of the needs of 
customers combined with her 
professional authority in the 
fi elds of nutrition and beauty 
care has led her to become the 
Group’s key product specialist.

Huang Ban Chin
Executive Director
Mr Huang is responsible for 
the execution of the Group’s 
business expansion plans and 
product development. He is 
also in charge of overseeing the 

From left: Dr Dora Hoan, Dr Doreen Tan, Huang Ban Chin, Ravindran Ramasamy, Lee Sen Choon and Lee Teck Leng Robson.
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Group’s day to day operations, 
investor relations, corporate 
fi nancial management and 
plays a pivotal role in developing 
Best World’s brand name into 
the region.

Mr Huang is a biochemist and 
microbiologist by training, with 
17 years of experience in the 
direct selling and healthy lifestyle 
industries. Upon graduating 
from the National University 
of Singapore in 1992 with a 
Bachelor of Science degree, 
he joined the Group as its 
marketing manager. Mr Huang 
was promoted to the position of 
Director in 1994 and assumed 
his current position as Executive 
Director in 2003.

Lee Sen Choon
Independent Director
Mr Lee is currently a partner of 
Messrs UHY Lee Seng Chan & 
Co., a public accounting fi rm 
in Singapore. He has more 
than 30 years of experience 
in accounting, audit, taxation 
and corporate secretarial 
work. Mr Lee is the Treasurer 
of the Board of Directors 
of Singapore Chinese High 
School and a Treasurer of the 
Board of Governors of Hwa 
Chong Institution. He is also a 
member of the School Advisory 
Committee of Xingnan Primary 
School. In addition, Mr Lee sits 
on the boards of a number of 
publicly listed companies as an 
independent director.

Mr Lee is also a member of 
the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in England and 
Wales and a practising member 
of the Institute of Certifi ed Public 
Accountants in Singapore. He 
holds a Bachelor of Science 
(Honours) degree from the then 
Nanyang University and has 
a post-graduate diploma in 
Management Studies from 
the University of Salford, 
United Kingdom.

Robson Lee Teck Leng
Independent Director
Mr Lee is the Chairman of the 
Remuneration Committee and 
also a member of the Audit 
Committee and the Nominating 
Committee.

Mr Lee, a senior corporate 
lawyer, is an equity partner 
in Shook Lin & Bok LLP. He 
has expertise in the areas of 
gloabl international fi nance 
and cross-border mergers 
and acquisitions. He holds the 
position of Secretary in the 
Board of Governors of Hwa 
Chong Institution and Secretary 
of the Board of Directors of The 
Singapore Chinese High School. 

He is also a trustee of the 
land on which both Hwa 
Chong Institution and Hwa 
Chong International School 
are situated. He also currently 
serves as an independent 
director on the boards of 
several Singapore and Chinese 
corporations listed on the 
Singapore Exchange. He is also 
a qualifi ed solicitor in England 
and Wales.  

Ravindran Ramasamy
Independent Director
Mr Ravindran is currently a legal 
consultant with INCA Law LLC, 
and is also an independent 
director of another Singapore-
incorporated SGX-ST listed 
company. He is a former 
Member of Parliament. Other 
prior appointments include 
Chairman of the Government 
Parliamentary Committee for 
Defence and Foreign Affairs, 
Board Member of the People’s 
Association, and membership in 
the Government Parliamentary 
Committee for Home Affairs 
and Law, the Marine Parade 
Town Council, the South East 
Community Development 
Council, the Singapore Institute 
of Directors and the Singapore 
Academy of Law.
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Cohesive Team

 Dr Pengo Chow 
 Country Manager
 Hong Kong and Macau

Katherine Cheah 
Senior Country Manager 
Malaysia

Ho Kok Tong
Country Manager
Taiwan

“ In Best World, we have the right 
people in the right places to fuel our 
growth and ensuring a sustainable 
business for tomorrow. Our collective 
experiences and team work make us 
up for any challenges, allowing us to 
tackle challenges with conviction.”

 Koh Hui
  Acting Group Financial Controller
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Daniel Chang
Country Manager 
Indonesia

Sugiharto Husin 
Group Manager,
Information System

Ang Ping 
Group Manager,
Branding 

Jerry Lu 
Regional General Manager 
bwL South East Asia

Kelvin Chung
Regional General Manager 
Greater China

Dr Gan Kok Wee
Group Manager
Training and Education

7COME ON BOARD



Koh Hui
Acting Group Financial 
Controller
Ms Koh is responsible for 
leading Best World’s regional 
fi nance organisation. Her 
responsibilities cover three 
main areas: management 
accounting for strategic 
planning and analysis as well 
as risk management; fi nancial 
accounting in compliance to 
regulatory requirements for 
treasury, tax and audit; and 
investor relations. She holds 
a Bachelor of Accountancy 
from Nanyang Technological 
University of Singapore, and is a 
Certifi ed Public Accountant with 
the Institute of Certifi ed Public 
Accountants of Singapore. Prior 
to joining the Group in 2003, 
she was a senior auditor with 
Ernst and Young.

Dr Gan Kok Wee
Group Manager, Training and 
Education
Dr Gan oversees the Group’s 
education and training system. 
One of his key responsibilities 
is to design and implement 
leadership training programmes 
for distributors and staff that 
meet the Group’s vision and 
mission. He also works closely 
with the Group CEO in coaching 
and counselling of distributors.
He holds double doctorate 
degrees in Computer Science 
from the National University 
of Singapore and Chinese 
Philosophy from East China 

Normal University. He has been 
in the education and training 
industry for close to 20 years, 
holding leadership positions 
in mainstream elementary to 
tertiary educational institutions 
as well as in special education. 
He also has over 10 years 
coaching and mentoring 
experience with mature 
students in life-skills acquisition 
and leadership development. 

Jerry Lu 
Regional General Manager 
South East Asia
Mr Lu is in charge of managing 
the South East Asian operations. 
He currently oversees the 
strategic planning, business 
development, operational 
processes of the businesses 
and maps out strategies to 
strengthen market networks. 
He holds a Bachelor’s degree 
in Commerce (Information 
Systems) from the Curtin 
University, Australia. Mr Lu fi rst 
joined the company in July 1995 
as a marketing manager. His 
consistent performance over the 
years has led to his promotion 
as Senior Area Manager in 2007 
and Regional General Manager 
in 2009.

Kelvin Chung
Regional General Manager 
Greater China
Mr Chung was appointed as 
Regional General Manager for 
Greater China in December 
2009, he is responsible for 

the business development 
& strategic planning for 
the market of the People’s 
Republic of China. He also 
works closely with Country 
Managers in Taiwan and Hong 
Kong to implement strategic 
plan for network development. 
Mr Chung holds a degree in 
Industrial Engineering from 
National Taiwan University of 
Science & Technology and 
has more than 20 years of 
management experiences in 
the direct selling industry. Prior 
to joining the Group, he was a 
Professional Trainer & Business 
Consultant for the industries in 
Taiwan, Hong Kong and China.

Katherine Cheah 
Senior Country Manager 
Best World Lifestyle Sdn Bhd, 
Malaysia
Ms Cheah is responsible 
for overseeing the business 
development of the Malaysian 
subsidiary. Specifi cally, she 
oversees cost effectiveness, 
effi ciency, profi tability, distributor 
satisfaction and day-to-day 
operations. She was among the 
Group’s pioneer management 
who witnessed the incorporation 
of our fi rst overseas subsidiary 
outside Singapore and remain 
the key driver of the Malaysian 
market to-date. Her consistent 
performance over the years has 
led to her promotions to Senior 
Country Manager in 2006. She 
has been with the Group since 
1999 and has more than 25 

Cohesive Team
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years of experience in the direct 
selling industry. 

Ho Kok Tong
Country Manager 
Best World Lifestyle (Taiwan) 
Co., Ltd
Mr Ho fi rst joined the company 
as the General Manager of 
Operations and Corporate 
in 2007. In 2008, he was 
appointed as the Country 
Manager for Taiwan and is 
responsible for overseeing the 
strategic planning, business 
development and day-to-day 
operations of the Group’s 
Taiwan subsidiary. He is a 
graduate of the Nanyang 
University Bachelor Of 
Commerce (Hons), a “Fellow 
Certifi ed Public Accountants of 
Singapore” (FCPA Singapore), 
and a “Fellow of the Association 
of Chartered Certifi ed 
Accountants” (FCCA). Prior to 
joining the Group, he had more 
than 20 years of experience 
in the scopes of fi nancial 
management, corporate fi nance 
and treasury management in 
both MNCs and SMEs. He also 
has over 10 years of experience 
in marketing health-related 
products in Southeast Asia. 

Dr Pengo Chow 
Country Manager 
Best World Lifestyle (HK) 
Company Limited
Dr Chow is responsible for 
the development of the Hong 
Kong and Macau markets. His 

responsibilities include business 
development and formulating 
marketing strategies. He 
oversees the operational 
processes and the direct selling 
activities of sales affi liates, 
distributor relationships and 
day-to-day operations. 

He holds a Bachelor degree 
in Economics, obtained his 
MBA from the University of 
Birmingham, and his Doctor of 
Business Administration from the 
University of Newcastle. He is 
also a Chartered Marketer and a 
Fellow of the Chartered Institute 
of Marketing (FCIM), UK, as well 
as a Member of the Institute of 
Management, UK. Before joining 
the Group in 2005, he had over 
15 years of experience in senior 
management and business 
development in Hong Kong 
and China.

Daniel Chang
Country Manager 
PT. Best World Indonesia
Mr Chang joined PT. Best World 
Indonesia as Finance Manager 
in 2005 and was promoted to 
Deputy Country Manager in 
2008, subsequently assume the 
position of Country Manager 
in 2009. He oversees the 
day-to-day operations and is in 
charge of direct selling activities 
and distributor relationship in 
Indonesia. He holds a Bachelor 
Degree in Accounting from 
Trisakti University, Indonesia and 
an Executive MBA degree from 

California State University East 
Bay, United States of America.

Sugiharto Husin 
Group Manager,
Information System
Mr Sugiharto oversees the 
Group’s IT requirements and 
champions the creation of 
new software that enhances 
business operations. He 
provides technological direction 
and oversees implementation of 
computer systems. He holds a 
Bachelor’s degree with Honours 
in Computer Science from 
University of Central England. 
He is also a certifi ed Architect 
for Enterprise Java Application.
He joined the Group in 2006.

Ang Ping
Group Manager,
Branding
Mr Ang oversees the 
development of all new 
products’ brand identities and 
positioning, packaging design, 
and marketing training materials. 
He sets the standards for all 
product brands and ensures 
that they are in line with global 
trends. He also manages and 
oversees the implementation of 
these brand standards within 
our region. He holds a Masters 
in Business Administration 
with the University of Chicago 
Graduate School of Business 
and was an Associate Director 
in Brand Alliance prior to joining 
Best World in April 2007.
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Financial Calendar 2010

25 February 2010
Announcement of
full year results
for fi nancial year ended
31 December 2009

2 March 2010
Analyst briefi ng

30 April 2010
Annual General Meeting 

4 May 2010
Proposed announcement 
of fi rst quarter results 
ending 31 March 2010

11 May 2010
Books closure date

24 May 2010
Payment of fi nal dividends

12 August 2010
Proposed announcement
of half year results
ending 30 June 2010  

13 August 2010
Analyst briefi ng

11 November 2010
Proposed announcement
of third quarter results 
ending 30 September 2010

18-25 February 2011
Proposed announcement
of full year results
ending 31 December 2010
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Best World China Investments Pte. Ltd. 100%SG 

Best World Lifestyle Pte Ltd 100%SG 
BBWL Sdn Bhd 99%BN 

1% PT. Best World Indonesia 70%ID 

Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd. 70%
MY 

BW
L (Thailand) Com

pany Lim
ited 49%

TH* 

Avance Living P
te. Ltd. 100%

S
G

 

Best World (Qingdao) Health Sciences Company Limited 100%CN 
Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. 100%CN 
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* The Group considers the company as a subsidiary of 
the Group as the Group has management control over 
the company through a shareholders’ agreement.
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L Korea C
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K

R
 

Group Structure
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Morale Booster

Quality Control
Best World is committed to producing quality 
products and services. To that end, the 
management pays special attention in harnessing 
technical expertise to the development and 
manufacturing of all forms of health related 
products to achieving the highest standards in 
product quality and safety. We received the ISO 
9002 certifi cation in 2000 from the Standards, 
Productivity and Innovative Board for our 
operations. This was upgraded to ISO 9001 
in 2003.

In 2004, we obtained a Manufacturer’s Licence 
for CPM from the HSA to package our products 
in our Singapore packaging facility. This licence, 
which is GMP equivalent, is administered by the 
Centre for Pharmaceutical Administration, an 
agency of HSA. These standards set forth for the 
qualifi cation of this licence ensures the production 
of good quality medicines and preservation of 
their quality down the supply chain from the 
manufacturers to distributors and retailers. 

All of our cosmetics, skin care, personal care 
and formulated nutritional supplement products 
are manufactured in GMP certifi ed (Good 
Manufacturing Practice) or GMP equivalent 
facilities. As such, our products are ensured 
to be produced and controlled to the highest 
quality standard.

Product Development
Successful innovation requires both imagination 
and technicality. We have clear insights into factors 
that drive emerging health trends and concerns. 

Best World is constantly in collaboration with 
health professionals and world renowned 
laboratories to produce new products with 
patented technology to remain competitive and 
ensure that these products will have sustainable 
appeal and longer product life cycle. Constantly 
progressing, our product pipeline is fi lled with 
winning ideas. Our target is to deliver 10-15 
products to our consumers annually. On the 
regulatory front, we direct our efforts towards 

ensuring timely registration of all new products in 
the Research and Development pipeline and the 
maintenance of product licenses. Armed with this 
knowledge and drive, our Product Development 
team is able to continually excite our consumers 
with innovative products to fulfi l targeted 
consumer needs. 

Branding 
As our portfolio of brands constantly evolves to 
generate long-term growth, our logistics expertise 
is also being strengthened to deliver our products 
globally. Being close to our consumers allows us 
to react quickly to changes in market conditions, 
trends and shifting consumer preferences.
Understanding that brand building is increasingly 
important to delivering sustainable growth for 
the Group, we continue to enhance consumers’ 
perception of our products. We are all committed 
to fi nd new ways of delivering a better brand 
experience while optimising consumer value.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Best World is committed to social responsibility. 
We are always seeking ways to better integrate 
social development and environmental concerns 
to ensure a better quality of life for future 
generations. We will continue our focus to 
contribute to the benefi t of underprivileged children 
and elderly.

Best World goes green
We know our environmental management can 
directly infl uence our business performance and 
provide a range of productivity benefi ts across 
a range of areas. By reducing the environmental 
impact of our operations, we provide better value 
for our shareholders, reduce ongoing costs, 
effi ciently utilise precious resources and initiate 
programs that benefi t the wider community. 

Progressively achieving carbon neutrality
Over 2008, we reduced our energy consumption, 
recycled waste, reduced offi ce paper 
consumption, recycled paper and reduced the use 
of plastic bags. 
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Energy use is continuously monitored in our 
workplace. Each Department nominates a 
Green Champion to educate and advocate the 
importance of being eco-friendly. Action plans 
based on these results are made in order to 
improve effi ciency and raise awareness among 
co-workers. 

We have also extended our Eco-friendly campaign 
into our supply chain management. Our materials 
used for any packaging design are strongly 
recommended to be either recycled or recyclable. 
Our logistics department also plan timely delivery 
to our subsidiaries to cut down on CO2 emissions 
therefore extra effort is being made from the 
purchase order of raw materials to delivery 
process to increase effi ciency and cost cutting. 
We also prefer to work with ISO 14001 certifi ed 
suppliers to support our belief in combating 
climate changes. 

Alternative travel methods to work
Since relocating to Changi, we encourage our 
staff to cycle, use public transport, or share cars 
and cabs to and from work. In addition, we also 
provide a shuttle bus pickup service at three MRT 
locations for our staff to conveniently travel to and 
from work. 

Our environmental Eco-friendly program is 
therefore the result of a structured and forward-
looking approach into what is required for the 
future and our aspirations. 

People Development
Best World has been granted a People Developer 
Certifi cation by Spring Singapore in 2007. 
This further acknowledges Best World’s fi rm 
commitment towards their staff and distributors, 
inspiring the unceasing pursuit of personal and 
professional development. Best World has also 
been granted Approved Training Centre (ATC) 
status by the Singapore Workforce Development 
Agency. As an ATC, we are certifi ed as having 
the qualifi ed facilities and assessors to conduct 
training courses. In order to be eligible for grants 
by the Singapore Workforce Development Agency, 

the course must be endorsed by 
SPRING Singapore. 

In order to increase product knowledge and 
business skills, and promote sustainable 
development, an Education and Training 
department was set up to implement new 
educational courses designed to improve 
leadership and life skills for staff and distributors
in regions we operate in. 

Investor Relations
By pursuing high standards of corporate 
governance, we continue to drive accountability 
and transparency, which are critical in maintaining 
the investor’s trust and confi dence in Best World.
Our dedicated Investor Relations team and senior 
management regularly meet up with investment 
and analyst communities through analyst 
meetings, investment roadshows, results briefi ng 
and annual general meetings. 

News and announcements are posted on our 
enhanced corporate website www.bestworld.com.
sg for easy accessibility by investors, business 
media and members of the public. The Group’s 
result announcements are simultaneously webcast 
real-time on our corporate website, which contains 
frequent updates of Best World’s stock quotes 
and news releases. 

During the year in review, Mr Huang Banchin, 
Executive Director; Ms Koh Hui, Acting Group 
Financial Controller and Ms Ika Kusuma, Investor 
Relations Manager met with visiting analysts and 
fund managers from Asia and Europe. To date, the 
Group has conducted more than 50 meetings with 
the investment communities locally and overseas.

On top of these forms of investor outreach, our 
management and investor relations team also 
actively engage overseas investors through 
conference calls. These sessions help us clarify 
issues that the investors have on developments as 
well as provide platforms for in-depth discussion 
on our strategies.
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Our Board of Directors (“Board”) is fully committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance 
in keeping with its overarching philosophy of delivering consistent fi nancial performance with integrity. 
It strongly supports the principles of transparency and accountability by complying with the Code of 
Corporate Governance 2005 (“Code”).

Good corporate governance is essential to maintain the trust of customers, partners, suppliers, employees 
and the public to ensure the long-term profi tability of our business. Therefore, the Board consistently 
maintains communication with its shareholders and holds frequent dialogues with investors, analysts, fund 
managers and the press. All presentation material is disseminated to SGX, the press and posted on the 
Company’s website at www.bestworld.com.sg

This report describes the Company’s corporate governance processes and structures that were in place 
throughout the fi nancial year, with specifi c reference made to the principles and guidelines of the Code. The 
Board is pleased to confi rm that for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2009, the Company has adhered 
to the principles and guidelines as set out in the Code.

The Board will continue to work hard for the benefi t of all shareholders by providing timely and accurate 
information through announcements and Investor Relations activities.

BOARD MATTERS
The Board’s Conduct Of Its Affairs
Principle 1: Every company should be headed by an effective Board to lead and control the company. The 
Board is collectively responsible for the success of the company. The Board works with Management to 
achieve this and the Management remains accountable to the Board.

The Board oversees the effectiveness of Management as well as the corporate governance of the Company 
to the best interests of the shareholders. The Board has clear vision and sets high transparency disclosure 
standards. It ensures that obligations to shareholders and stakeholders are understood and met. Each 
director brings to the Board professional skills, experience, insights and sound judgment. Every member of 
the Board is collectively responsible for the success of the Company, therefore, the Board works with the 
Management to provide leadership and guidance and on corporate strategies and directions in relation to 
the Company’s activities which are signifi cant in nature.

The Board consists of six members, comprising three non-executive independent directors and three 
executive directors. Together, the directors bring a wide range of business, legal and fi nancial experience 
relevant to the Group.

Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi Chairman
Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui Group Chief Executive Offi cer and Managing Director
Mr Huang Ban Chin Executive Director 
Mr Robson Lee Teck Leng Independent Director
Mr Ravindran Ramasamy Independent Director
Mr Lee Sen Choon Independent Director

Corporate Governance
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Corporate Governance

The full Board meets at least 4 times a year and additional meetings are convened as and when deemed 
necessary. The Company’s Articles of Association provide for the Board to convene meetings via 
teleconferencing and electronic means. 

The Board is entrusted with the responsibility of the overall management of the Company. The principal 
functions of the Board are:

a. Approving policies, strategies and fi nancial objectives of the Company and monitoring the 
performance of Management;

b. Overseeing the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk management, 
fi nancial reporting and compliance; 

c. Approving nominations of board directors, committee members and key personnel;
d. Approving annual budgets, funding requirements, expansion programmes, capital investment, major 

acquisitions and divestments proposals; and
e. Approving transactions involving interested parties.

Certain functions have been delegated to various Board Committees, namely the Nominating Committee 
(“NC”), the Remuneration Committee (“RC”) and the Audit Committee (“AC”). These committees are made 
up wholly or predominantly of and chaired by independent directors.

The following table shows the number of meetings held by the Board and Committees and the attendance 
of each of the Directors for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2009:

      Audit Nominating Remuneration
Name of Directors    Board Committee Committee Committee

Number of meetings held   4 5 1 1

Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi   4 – – –
Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui   4 – 1 –
Mr Huang Ban Chin   4 – – –
Mr Lee Sen Choon   4 5 1 1
Mr Robson Lee Teck Leng   3 4 1 1
Mr Ravindran Ramasamy   4 4 1 1

The Company has established fi nancial authorisation and approval limits for operating and capital 
expenditure. The Board approves transactions exceeding certain threshold limits and while delegating 
authority for transactions below these limits to senior management so as to facilitate operational effi ciency.

Board members are also encouraged to attend seminars at least annually and receive training to improve 
themselves in the discharge of their duties as directors. The Company works closely with professionals 
to provide its directors with updates on changes to relevant laws, regulations and accounting standards.
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Board Composition And Balance
Principle 2: There should be a strong and independent element on the Board, which is able to exercise 
objective judgment on corporate affairs independently, in particular, from Management. No individual or 
small group of individuals should be allowed to dominate the Board’s decision making.

The Company endeavors to maintain a strong and independent element on the Board with the independent 
director making up of at least one-third of the Board. The independent directors have confi rmed that they 
do not have any relationship with the Company or its related companies or its offi cers that could interfere, 
or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the directors’ independent business judgment 
with a view to the best interests of the Company. The independence of each director is reviewed annually 
by the NC. For the fi nancial year under review, the NC has reviewed and determined that the said directors 
are independent.

The Board is of the opinion that its current size of six Board members is appropriate, of which three 
are independent directors having taken into account the nature and scope of the Company’s operations. 
The composition of the Board is also reviewed on an annual basis by the NC to ensure that the Board 
has the appropriate mix of expertise and experience for effective functioning of the Board. Together, the 
Board members possess a balanced fi eld of core competencies to lead the Company. Details of the Board 
members’ qualifi cations and experience are presented in this Annual Report under the heading “Board of 
Directors”.

Chairman And Chief Executive Offi cer (“CEO”)
Principle 3: There should be a clear division of responsibilities at the top of the company – the working of the 
Board and the executive responsibility of the company’s business – which will ensure a balance of power 
and authority, such that no one individual represents a considerable concentration of power.

There is a clear separation of the roles and responsibilities of the Chairman, Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi and the 
Group CEO, Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui. The presence of a strong independent element and the participation 
of the independent directors ensure that the Chairman and the Group CEO do not have unfettered powers 
of decision.

The Chairman’s duties and responsibilities include:

a. scheduling of meetings to enable the Board to perform its duties responsibly;
b. preparing the agenda of meetings;
c. ensuring the proper conduct of meetings and accurate documentation of the proceedings;
d. ensuring the smooth and timely fl ow of information between the Board and Management; and
e. ensuring compliance with internal polices and guidelines of the Company.

In addition to the above duties, the Chairman will assume duties and responsibilities as may be required 
from time to time. 

The Group CEO, Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui is responsible in the strategic direction of the Company and 
provides the Group with strong leadership and vision.
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Corporate Governance

Board Membership
Principle 4: There should be a formal and transparent process for the appointment of new directors to the 
Board.

The NC is established comprising of four members, a majority of whom are non-executive independent 
directors. 

Chairman: Mr Ravindran Ramasamy
Member: Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui 
Member: Mr Lee Sen Choon
Member: Mr Robson Lee Teck Leng

The NC is established for the purpose of ensuring that there is a formal and transparent process for all 
Board appointments. It has adopted written terms of reference defi ning its membership, administration and 
duties. 

The duties of the NC are as follows: 

a. To make recommendations to the Board on all board appointments; 
b. To re-nominate directors having regard to their contribution and performance;
c. To determine annually whether a director is independent; 
d. To review the composition of the Board and make recommendations on the performance criteria and 

appraisal process to be used for the evaluation of the individual directors; and 
e. To assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and decide if each director has been adequately 

carrying out his or her duties.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, at each Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), 
not less than one-third of the directors are required to retire from offi ce by rotation. Accordingly, the directors 
will submit themselves for re-nomination and re-election at regular intervals of at least once every three 
years. The Group CEO and Managing Director, Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui, shall however not be subject to 
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining the number of directors to retire. 

In addition, any newly appointed director must retire and submit himself for re-election at the next AGM 
following his appointment. Thereafter he is subject to the one-third rotation rule if re-elected.
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Details of the appointment of directors including date of initial appointment and last re-election, directorships 
in listed companies, both current and for the preceding three years are tabled below:
    Date of initial Date of last
    appointment re-election Directorships in
Name of directors/appointments  as director as director listed companies

Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi(2) 11 December 1990 30 April 2008 Best World International Limited
Chairman

Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui(1) 11 December 1990 – Best World International Limited
Group CEO and 
Managing Director 

Mr Huang Ban Chin 13 September 1994 30 April 2008 Best World International Limited
Executive Director 

Mr Lee Sen Choon 24 May 2004 30 April 2009 Best World International Limited
Independent Director   Hor Kew Corporation Limited
      Kyodo-Allied Industries Ltd
      Rokko Holdings Ltd
      Soon Lian Holdings Limited

Mr Robson Lee Teck Leng 24 May 2004 30 April 2009 Best World International Limited
Independent Director   Man Wah Holdings Limited (resigned)
      Matex International Limited
      Qian Hu Corporation Limited
      Sim Lian Group Limited
      Serial System Limited
      Youcan Foods International Limited

Mr Ravindran Ramasamy(2) 24 May 2004 27 April 2007 Best World International Limited
Independent Director   Serial System Limited

(1) According to Article 85 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui, being the Group CEO and Managing 
Director, shall not be subject to retirement by rotation

(2) According to Article 89 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr Ravindran Ramasamy and Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi will retire at 
the forthcoming AGM and be eligible for re-election

Board Performance
Principle 5: There should be a formal assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the 
contribution by each director to the effectiveness of the Board.

An effective Board is able to make sound decisions and act in the best interests of the Company and its 
shareholders. 

The NC is responsible to review, assess and determine on an annual basis, the independence of directors 
and the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution by each individual director to the 
effectiveness of the Board in the year 2009. 

The Directors also completed appraisal forms to assess each individual Director’s contributions to the 
effectiveness of the Board on an annual basis. The factors assessed include participation at board meetings, 
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Corporate Governance

compliance with Company’s policies and procedures, performance in respect of specifi c tasks delegated 
and other factors that will assist in assessing the overall effectiveness of the Board.

Access To Information
Principle 6: In order to fulfi ll their responsibilities, Board members should be provided with complete, 
adequate and timely information prior to board meetings and on an on-going basis.

The Board is furnished with board papers fi ve days in advance prior to any board meeting. These papers 
are issued in suffi cient time to enable the directors to obtain additional information or explanations from the 
Management, if necessary. However, sensitive matters may be tabled at the meeting itself or discussed 
without papers being distributed. The board papers include minutes of the previous meeting, reports 
relating to investment proposals, fi nancial results announcements, and reports from committees, internal 
and external auditors.

The directors may communicate directly with the Management team and the Company Secretary on 
all matters whenever they deem necessary. The Company Secretary attends all board meetings and is 
responsible for the recording of the proceedings. 

The Board has separate and independent access to the Company Secretary and to other senior 
management executives of the Group at all times in carrying out their duties. 

The Company currently does not have a formal procedure for directors to seek independent and professional 
advice for the furtherance of their duties. However, directors may, on a case-to-case basis, propose to the 
Board for such independent and professional advice, the cost of which may be borne by the Company.

REMUNERATION MATTERS
Procedures For Developing Remuneration Policies
Principle 7: There should be a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on executive 
remuneration and for fi xing the remuneration packages of individual directors. No director should be 
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is established comprising of three members whom are non-executive 
independent directors. 

Chairman: Mr Robson Lee Teck Leng
Member: Mr Lee Sen Choon
Member: Mr Ravindran Ramasamy

No member of the RC has expertise in the fi eld of executive compensation. However, the RC may seek 
professional advice on remuneration matters as and when necessary. The expense of such professional 
advice is borne by the Company.
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The RC is established for the purpose of ensuring that there is a formal and transparent procedure for 
fi xing the remuneration packages of individual directors. The overriding principle is that no director should 
be involved in deciding his own remuneration. It has adopted written terms of reference that defi nes its 
membership, roles and functions and administration. 

The RC recommends to the Board a framework of remuneration for the directors and key executives, and 
determines specifi c remuneration package of each executive director. The recommendations are submitted 
for endorsement by the Board.

The duties of the RC are as follows:

a. To review and recommend to the Board a framework of remuneration for executive directors and 
senior management staff;

b. To review the remuneration packages of employees related to any of the executive directors, CEO or 
substantial shareholder; and

c. To recommend to the Board, the Executives’ and Employees’ Share Option Schemes or any long 
term incentive scheme.

By reviewing remunerations packages annually, this aims to build a more capable and committed 
management team through competitive compensation and focused management and progressive policies. 

Level of Mix of Remuneration
Principle 8: The level of remuneration should be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate the directors 
needed to run the company successfully but companies should avoid paying more than is necessary for 
this purpose. A signifi cant proportion of executive directors’ remuneration should be structured so as to link 
rewards to corporate and individual performance.

In setting and reviewing the remuneration packages, the Company takes into consideration the remuneration 
and employment conditions in comparable companies and industries, as well as the Group’s relative 
performance and the work scope and performance of the individual directors.

Executive directors do not receive directors’ fees and they have service agreements subject to renewal 
every three years. The remuneration for the executive directors and the key executives comprises of a basic 
salary component and a variable component which is the incentive bonus, based on the performance of 
the Group as a whole.

The independent directors are paid a director’s fee for their effort and time spent and for their responsibilities 
and contribution to the Board. The directors’ fees are subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM.
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Disclosure on Remuneration
Principle 9: Each company should provide clear disclosure of its remuneration policy, level and mix of 
remuneration, and the procedure for setting remuneration in the company’s annual report. It should 
provide disclosure in relation to its remuneration policies to enable investors to understand the link between 
remuneration paid to directors and key executives, and performance.

A breakdown of the remuneration paid to each director in bands of $250,000 for the fi nancial year is as 
follows:
      Incentive Benefi ts-
    Salary(1) Bonus Bonus in-kind Fees Total
Name of Directors  Remuneration Band % % % % % %

Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi  Above $1,000,000
   to $1,250,000 53 4 42 1 – 100

Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui Above $1,000,000
   to $1,250,000 53 4 42 1 – 100

Mr Huang Ban Chin Above $500,000
   to $750,000 55 4 39 2 – 100

Mr Lee Sen Choon Below $250,000 – – – – 100 100

Mr Robson Lee Teck Leng Below $250,000 – – – – 100 100

Mr Ravindran Ramasamy Below $250,000 – – – – 100 100

(1) Comprises of salary and all CPF contributions

The Company adopts a policy of rewarding its key executives and managers by way of a basic salary 
component and a variable component comprising variable bonus which is based on individual performance 
as well as incentive bonus which is based on the performance of the Group as a whole.

The top fi ve executives of the Group, earning remuneration within the range of $250,000, who are not 
directors, are shown below:

Jerry Lu Shih Chieh – Regional General Manager, South East Asia 
Gan Kok Wee – Group Manager, Training and Education
Ho Kok Tong – Country Manager, Taiwan
Koh Hui – Acting Group Financial Controller
Sugiharto Husin – Group Manager, Information Systems

There are no employees in the Group who are immediate family members of any director or the CEO and 
whose remuneration exceeds $150,000 during the fi nancial year. The remuneration of Directors and key 
executives are reviewed by the RC and is disclosed in the Annual Report. The Board is of the opinion that 
it is not necessary to invite the shareholders to approve the Board’s annual remuneration report and policy.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Accountability
Principle 10: The Board should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the company’s 
performance, position and prospects.
 
The Management presents to the Board the quarterly and full year accounts and the Audit Committee 
reports to the Board on the results for review and approval. The Board approves the results after review and 
authorises the release of the results to the SGX-ST and the public via SGXNET.

In presenting the annual and quarterly fi nancial statements announcements to shareholders promptly, it is 
the aim of the Board to provide a detailed analysis and a balanced and understandable assessment of the 
Group’s performance, fi nancial position and prospect. 

The Board is also provided with relevant information on the Group’s performance for effective monitoring 
and decision-making.

Audit Committee
Principle 11: The Board should establish an Audit Committee (“AC”) with written terms of reference which 
clearly set out its authority and duties.

The AC comprises of three members whom are non-executive independent directors. 

Chairman: Mr Lee Sen Choon
Member: Mr Robson Lee Teck Leng 
Member: Mr Ravindran Ramasamy

The Chairman, Mr Lee Sen Choon, has more than 20 years of experience in accounting, auditing, taxation 
and corporate secretarial work. The other members of the AC possess experience in fi nance, legal and 
business management. 

The Board is of the opinion that the members of the AC have suffi cient fi nancial management and expertise 
and experience in discharging their duties.

The role of the AC is to assist the Board with discharging its responsibility to safeguard the Company’s 
assets, maintain adequate accounting records, develop and maintain effective systems of internal control.

The terms of reference of the AC are:

a. To review the audit plan, system of internal accounting controls and the audit report in conjunction 
with external auditors;

b. To review the assistance given by the Company’s offi cers to the external auditors;
c. To review the independence and objectivity of the external auditors annually;
d. To nominate external auditors for re-appointment;
e. To review the fi nancial statements of the Company including quarterly and full year results and the 

respective announcements before submission to the Board;
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f. To give due consideration to the requirements of Stock Exchange Listing Rules; and
g. To review interested person transactions.

In discharging the above duties, the AC confi rms that it has full access to and co-operation from 
Management and is given full discretion to invite any director or executive director to attend its meetings. 
In addition, the AC has also been given reasonable resources to enable it to perform its functions properly.

The AC has also met with the external auditors without the presence of the Company’s Management 
annually. The AC has also conducted an annual review of the volume of non-audit services to satisfy itself 
that the nature and extent of such services will not prejudice the independence and objectivity of the 
auditors before recommending their re-nomination to the Board.  

Internal control
Principle 12: The Board should ensure that the Management maintains a sound system of internal controls 
to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the company’s assets.

The Board believes that, in the absence of any evidence to the contrary, the system of internal controls 
maintained by the Company’s management provides reasonable assurance against material fi nancial 
misstatements or loss. The system of internal controls includes the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance 
of proper accounting records, the reliability of fi nancial information, compliance with appropriate legislation, 
regulation and best practices, and the identifi cation and management of business risks.

Based on the internal auditors’ reports submitted by the internal auditors and the various controls put in 
place by the Management, the Audit Committee is satisfi ed that there are adequate internal controls.

In addition, to reinforce other fi nancial, compliance and risk management controls to safeguard shareholders’ 
investments and the Company’s assets, the AC has also assessed that an Enterprise Risk Management 
programme is necessary for the organisation.

In the fi nancial year under review, the Company has engaged an independent consultant to develop a 
comprehensive Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) programme. 

The objectives of this programme include the following:

a. Identify top risks that the Company is exposed to;
b. Establish whether counter measures are in place to address the top risks and other identifi ed risks;
c. Develop a structured risk reporting hierarchy leading to the Audit Committee; and
d. Develop an ongoing monitoring process to address existing and new risks on a timely basis.

The ERM programme is currently in the process of implementation and will be executed in sequential 
phases at different levels and sections of the organisation across the world. To better ensure that internally 
driven process risk are well managed, the Company will also be implementing a Control Self Assessment 
programme to provide timely feedback on operating effectiveness of operating risk counter measures. 
When fully implemented, the ERM programme will consolidate all current risk management activities in 
the Company to promote a consistent and complete view of risk management activities in the Company.
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The ERM programme for the Company is based on the following framework:

Risk assessment 
To promote comprehensive identifi cation of risks, the risk assessment process requires structured 
risk interviews with management personnel, process mapping for operational entities and multiple risk 
workshops designed for objective and autonomous risk discussion and prioritization. 

Risks identifi ed for each major component of the organisation are prioritised and their countermeasures 
evaluated for suffi ciency. Areas where high residual risks still exist will be highlighted for possible corrective 
actions to be taken. Process owners for signifi cant risks will also be identifi ed for closer monitoring of risks.

Risk monitoring
The Company will be adopting tailored approaches to manage different categories of risks. Externally 
driven business risks such as customer demand trends, key strategy assumptions, etc. will be monitored 
by Senior Management through regular reporting of relevant statistics. 

Process risks relating to operational risks, reporting and compliance risks will be managed through detailed 
management policies and procedures and further reviewed through independent audits. The new Control 
Self Assessment process will also provide timely and wide coverage monitoring over effectiveness of risk 
counter measures in place. 

Where new risks are introduced to the organisation such as new system implementation or new acquisitions, 
management will be required to complete detailed risk assessment reports to the appropriate authority 
before proceeding with the transactions. 

Risk response
The ERM programme will help to defi ne the risk appetite of the organisation and for Management to adopt 
consistent responses to the risks identifi ed. Where possible, the Company will transfer risks to third parties 
through commercial insurance coverage. High risk areas that are deemed to be necessary in the course of 
business will be subject to a structured approving process.

Risk reporting
A Chief Risk Offi cer has been nominated and he will be assisted by a newly setup Risk Committee. The 
Risk Committee comprises the heads of the various key operating divisions in the organisation. The Risk 
Committee will be further assisted by nominated Risk Offi cers in various departments in the organisation. 

Routine risk reports will be submitted regularly to the AC while ad hoc risk reports will be compiled and 
reported where new risks are introduced to the organisation such as for new acquisitions, mergers and 
investments.
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Internal Audit
Principle 13: The company should establish an internal audit function that is independent of the activities 
it audits.

The Company has engaged the services of external consultant to perform the internal audit functions. The 
internal auditors report directly to the Chairman of the AC on internal audit matters.

The Internal Audit methodology adopted by our internal auditors is consistent with the requirements of The 
Institute of Internal Auditors.  

Communication with Shareholders
Principle 14: Companies should engage in regular, effective and fair communication with shareholders.

The Company endeavors to communicate regularly, effectively and fairly with its shareholders.

The Company communicates information to its shareholders on a timely basis through:

a. Disclosures to SGXNET and press releases on major developments of the Group;
b. The Group’s website at www.bestworld.com.sg from which shareholders can access. The website 

provides all publicly disclosed fi nancial information, corporate announcements, press releases and 
the annual report;

c. Annual reports which are prepared and issued to all shareholders;
d. Share investor online portal which provides the Company’s share updates and all publicly disclosed 

information. It also provides web cast of analysts’ briefi ng for the update of our fi nancial results; and
e. Asiaone.com.sg forum that publishes updated investors’ relations information.

In addition, the Company  communicates regularly with investors and analysts via half yearly results briefi ng 
as well as via ad-hoc meetings and teleconferences in offi ce.

Principle 15: Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at AGMs, and allow 
shareholders the opportunity to communicate their views on various matters affecting the company.

The Annual General Meeting is the principal forum for dialogue with shareholders. There is an open question 
and answer session at which shareholders may raise questions or share their views regarding the proposed 
resolutions and the Company’s businesses and affairs.

In addition, the Chairman of the respective committees and the external auditors will be present at the AGM 
to address any queries from the shareholders.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has set out guidelines to the directors and key employees of the group to prohibit dealings 
in the Company’s securities while in possession of price sensitive information and during the period 
commencing two weeks before the announcement of the Company’s quarter year results and one month 
before the announcement of the Company’s full year results and ending on the date of announcement of 
the results.
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All directors and executives of the Company are also advised to observe insider trading laws at all times 
even when dealing in the Company’s securities within the permitted trading period.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS POLICY
The Company has adopted an internal policy governing procedures for the identifi cation, approval and 
monitoring of transactions with interested persons. All interested person transactions (“IPT”) are subject to 
review by the AC every 3 months to ensure that the relevant rules in Chapter 9 are complied with.

Pursuant to Rule 907 of the Listing Manual of SGX-ST, transactions entered into with interested persons 
during the fi nancial year are as follows:

    For the year ended 2009
    Aggregate value of all interested person 
    transactions during the fi nancial year under Aggregate value of all
    review (excluding transactions less than  interested person transactions conducted
    $100,000 and transactions conducted under under shareholders’ mandate pursuant to Rule 920
     shareholders’ mandate pursuant to Rule 920) (excluding transaction less than $100,000)
Name of interested person  $’000 $’000

Pek Cheng Seng Richard(1)

 Sales   54 NA
 Freelance Commission Paid 178 NA

Pek Lu Pin(1)

 Sales   34 NA
 Freelance Commission Paid 102 NA
 Subsidised Travel Expenses 2 NA

AK Karmen Counselling & Associates(2)

 Consultancy fees 140 NA

(1) Immediate family member of Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi
(2) A fi rm in which the spouse of Mr Huang Ban Chin has an equity interest

Currently, the Company is not required to have a general mandate from its shareholders in relation to IPT 
as the aggregate value of IPT transactions is below the threshold level as set out in the Listing Manual of 
the SGX-ST.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS
There were no material contracts entered into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries involving the 
interest of the Board or controlling shareholders.
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Directors’ Report
31 December 2009

The directors of the company are pleased to present their report together with the audited fi nancial 
statements of the company and of the group for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2009.

1. Directors at Date of Report
 The directors of the company in offi ce at the date of this report are:
 Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui
 Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi
 Mr Huang Ban Chin
 Mr Lee Sen Choon
 Mr Robson Lee Teck Leng
 Mr Ravindran Ramasamy

2. Arrangements to Enable Directors to Acquire Benefi ts by Means of the Acquisition of 
Shares and Debentures

 Neither at the end of the fi nancial year nor at any time during the fi nancial year did there subsist any 
arrangement whose object is to enable the directors of the company to acquire benefi ts by means 
of the acquisition of shares or debentures in the company or any other body corporate.

3. Directors’ Interests in Shares and Debentures
 The directors of the company holding offi ce at the end of the fi nancial year had no interests in 

the share capital of the company and related corporations as recorded in the register of directors’ 
shareholdings kept by the company under section 164 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 except as 
follows:

  Held in the name of directors Deemed Interest
     At beginning At end At beginning At end
  Name of directors and companies in which interests are held of the year of the year of the year of the year

  Best World International Limited  Number of shares of no par value

 Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui  12,052,000 12,052,000 75,100,000 75,100,000
 Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi  12,152,000 12,152,000 75,000,000 75,000,000
 Mr Huang Ban Chin   9,000,000 9,000,000 – –
 Mr Lee Sen Choon   75,000 75,000 – –
 Mr Robson Lee Teck Leng  66,000 66,000 – –

 By virtue of section 7 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui and Dr Doreen Tan 
Nee Moi are deemed to have an interest in all the related corporations of the company.

 The directors’ interests as at 21 January 2010 were the same as those at the end of the year.

4. Contractual Benefi ts of Directors
 Since the beginning of the fi nancial year, no director of the company has received or become entitled 

to receive a benefi t which is required to be disclosed under section 201(8) of the Companies Act, 
Cap. 50, by reason of a contract made by the company or a related corporation with the director or 
with a fi rm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial fi nancial interest 
except as disclosed in the fi nancial statements.
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5. Options to take up Unissued Shares
 During the fi nancial year, no option to take up unissued shares of the company or any corporation in 

the group was granted.

6. Options Exercised
 During the fi nancial year, there were no shares of the company or any corporation in the group issued 

by virtue of the exercise of an option to take up unissued shares.

7. Unissued Shares Under Option
 At the end of the fi nancial year, there were no unissued shares under option.

8. Audit Committee
 The members of the audit committee at the date of this report are as follows:
 Mr Lee Sen Choon (Chairman of audit committee and Independent Director)
 Mr Robson Lee Teck Leng (Independent Director)
 Mr Ravindran Ramasamy (Independent Director)

 The audit committee performs the functions specifi ed by section 201B(5) of the Companies Act. 
Among others, it performed the following functions:

–  Reviewed with the independent external auditors their audit plan;

– Reviewed with the independent external auditors their evaluation of the company’s internal 
accounting controls, their report on the fi nancial statements and the assistance given by the 
company’s offi cers to them;

– Reviewed with the internal auditors the scope and results of the internal audit procedures;

– Reviewed the fi nancial statements of the group and the company prior to their submission to the 
directors of the company for adoption; and 

– Reviewed the interested person transactions (as defi ned in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of 
SGX).

 Other functions performed by the audit committee are described in the report on corporate 
governance included in the annual report. It also includes an explanation of how independent 
auditors’ objectivity and independence is safeguarded where the independent auditors provide non-
audit services.

 The audit committee has recommended to the board of directors that the independent auditors, 
RSM Chio Lim LLP, be nominated for re-appointment as independent auditors at the forthcoming 
annual general meeting of the company.
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Directors’ Report
31 December 2009

9. Independent Auditors
 The independent auditors, RSM Chio Lim LLP, have expressed their willingness to accept re-

appointment.

10. Subsequent Developments
 There are no signifi cant developments subsequent to the release of the group’s and the company’s 

preliminary fi nancial statements, as announced on 25 February 2010, which would materially affect 
the group’s and the company’s operating and fi nancial performance as of the date of this report.

 

On Behalf of the Directors

Doreen Tan Nee Moi Dora Hoan Beng Mui
Director Director

5 March 2010
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Statement by Directors
31 December 2009

In the opinion of the directors,

a. the accompanying consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income, statements of fi nancial position, statements of changes in equity, consolidated statement of 
cash fl ows, and notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the company and of the group as at 31 December 2009 and of the results and cash fl ows of the 
group and changes in equity of the company and of the group for the fi nancial year then ended; and

b. at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able 
to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The board of directors approved and authorised these fi nancial statements for issue on 5 March 2010.

On Behalf of the Directors

Doreen Tan Nee Moi Dora Hoan Beng Mui
Director Director

5 March 2010
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the members of Best World International Limited (Registration No: 199006030Z)

We have audited the accompanying fi nancial statements of Best World International Limited and its 
subsidiaries (“the group”), which comprise the statements of fi nancial position of the group and the company 
as at 31 December 2009, and the statements of income and comprehensive income, statement of changes 
in equity and statement of cash fl ows of the group and statement of changes in equity of the company for 
the year then ended, and a summary of signifi cant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fi nancial statements in 
accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50 (“the Act”) and Singapore 
Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: 

a. devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls suffi cient to provide a reasonable 
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and 
transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the 
preparation of true and fair statements of income and comprehensive income and statements of 
fi nancial positions and to maintain accountability of assets; 

b. selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and 

c. making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Independent Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
fi nancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the fi nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the fi nancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion,

a.  the consolidated fi nancial statements of the group and the statement of fi nancial position and 
statement of changes in equity of the company are properly drawn up in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the group and of the company as at 31 December 2009 and the results, 
changes in equity and cash fl ows of the group and the changes in equity of the company for the year 
ended on that date; and

b. the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the company and by those 
subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of which we are the independent auditors have been properly 
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

RSM Chio Lim LLP
Public Accountants and
Certifi ed Public Accountants
Singapore

5 March 2010

Partner in charge of audit: Woo E-Sah
Effective from year ended 31 December 2007
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       Notes  2009 2008
        $’000 $’000

Revenue       5 72,956 96,063
Cost of Sales       (19,019) (22,377)

Gross Profi t       53,937 73,686
Other Items of Income
Interest Income       219 286
Other Operating Income     6 731 410
Other Credits      7 1,953 –
Other Items of Expense
Distribution Costs     9 (26,421) (38,669)
Administrative Expenses     9 (18,460) (18,844)
Finance Costs      8 (3) (81)
Other Charges      7 (567) (3,455)

Profi t Before Tax from Continuing Operations    11,389 13,333
Income Tax Expenses     12 (1,678) (3,126)

Profi t from Continuing Operations, Net of Tax    9,711 10,207

Profi t (Loss) Net of Tax Attributable to:
 – Owners of the Parent     9,671 10,626
 – Minority Interests      40 (419)

Profi t Net of Tax       9,711 10,207

Earnings Per Share
Earnings per Share (expressed in cents per share)   14
 – Basic       4.69 5.15
 – Diluted       4.69 5.15

Consolidated Statement of Income
Year ended 31 December 2009

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.

       Notes  2009 2008
        $’000 $’000

Profi t Net of Tax      9,711 10,207
Other Comprehensive Income
Exchange (Losses) Gains on Translating Foreign Operations   (870) 774

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax   (870) 774

Total Comprehensive Income     8,841 10,981

Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to:
 – Owners of the Parent     9,012 11,283
 – Minority Interests      (171) (302)

Total Comprehensive Income      8,841 10,981

Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December 2009
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    Notes Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment  16 6,949 8,265 3,320 4,092
Intangible Assets   17 2,150 2,379 237 201
Investments in Subsidiaries   18 – – 9,761 9,195
Deferred Tax Assets   12 15 16 – –
Other Receivables   19 – – 3,289 3,480
Other Financial Assets   20 206 1,209 – 1,000

Total Non-Current Assets   9,320 11,869 16,607 17,968

Current Assets
Inventories     21 6,794 8,370 5,022 5,119
Trade and Other Receivables  22 10,242 11,043 14,039 24,120
Other Financial Assets   20 1,000 2,500 1,000 2,500
Other Assets     23 1,713 1,390 1,212 904
Cash and Cash Equivalents   24 36,079 30,610 23,650 18,126

Total Current Assets    55,828 53,913 44,923 50,769

Total Assets     65,148 65,782 61,530 68,737

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity Attributable to Owners of the Parent
Share Capital    25 17,686 17,686 17,686 17,686
Retained Earnings    36,203 31,070 39,294 38,446
Other Reserve     97 756 – –

Equity, Attributable to Owners of the Parent  53,986 49,512 56,980 56,132
Minority Interests    43 340 – –

Total Equity      54,029 49,852 56,980 56,132

Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities   12 230 279 184 233
Finance Leases    26 – 15 – 15

Total Non-Current Liabilities   230 294 184 248

Statements of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2009

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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    Notes Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Current Liabilities
Income Tax Payable    1,994 2,833 1,277 3,031
Trade and Other Payables   27 8,895 12,796 3,089 9,319
Finance Leases    26 – 7 – 7

Total Current Liabilities    10,889 15,636 4,366 12,357

Total Liabilities    11,119 15,930 4,550 12,605

Total Equity and Liabilities   65,148 65,782 61,530 68,737

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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         Foreign
      Attributable   Currency
     Total to Parent Share Retained Translation Minority
     Equity Sub-total Capital Earnings Reserve Interests
Group     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Current Year
Opening Balance at 1 January 2009  49,852 49,512 17,686 31,070 756 340
Movements in Equity
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  8,841 9,012 – 9,671 (659) (171)
Dividends Paid (Note 15)   (4,664) (4,538) – (4,538) – (126)

Closing Balance at 31 December 2009  54,029 53,986 17,686 36,203 97 43

Previous Year
Opening Balance at 1 January 2008  45,471 44,829 17,686 27,044 99 642
Movements in Equity
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  10,981 11,283 – 10,626 657 (302)
Dividends Paid (Note 15)   (6,600) (6,600) – (6,600) – –

Closing Balance at 31 December 2008  49,852 49,512 17,686 31,070 756 340

Statements of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2009

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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          Foreign
          Currency
       Total Share Retained Translation
       Equity Capital Earnings Reserve
Company       $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Current Year
Opening Balance at 1 January 2009    56,132 17,686 38,446 –
Movements in Equity
Total Comprehensive Income for the year    5,386 – 5,386 –
Dividends Paid (Note 15)     (4,538) – (4,538) –

Closing Balance at 31 December 2009    56,980 17,686 39,294 –

Previous Year
Opening Balance at 1 January 2008    48,973 17,686 31,204 83
Movements in Equity
Total Comprehensive Income for the year    13,759 – 13,842 (83)
Dividends Paid (Note 15)     (6,600) – (6,600) –

Closing Balance at 31 December 2008    56,132 17,686 38,446 –

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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  Group
         2009 2008
        $’000 $’000

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Profi t Before Tax       11,389 13,333
Interest Income       (219) (286)
Interest Income from Other Receivable     (293) –
Interest Expense      3 81
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment    1,773 1,701
Amortisation of Intangible Assets     146 167
Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment    13 16
Gain on Disposal of a Subsidiary     (317) –
Impairment Loss on Intangible Assets     213 400
Net Effect of Exchange Rate Changes in Consolidating Foreign Subsidiaries  (831) 837

Operating Cash Flows before Changes in Working Capital   11,877 16,249
Inventories        1,576 (2,801)
Trade and Other Receivables     (6,151) 9,505
Other Assets        (372) (7)
Trade and Other Payables      (1,669) (5,753)

Net Cash Flows from Operations Before Interest and Tax   5,261 17,193
Income Tax Paid      (2,181) (5,126)

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities    3,080 12,067

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment    (708) (1,668)
Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment    9 697
Disposal of a Subsidiary (Net of Cash Disposed) (Note 13)   (525) –
Increase in Intangible Assets     (153) (63)
Decrease (Increase) in Other Financial Assets    2,500 (3,500)
Decrease (Increase) in Other Receivables     5,443 (4,208)
Interest Received      219 286
Interest Received from Other Receivable     293 –

Net Cash Flows From (Used in) Investing Activities   7,078 (8,456)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 December 2009

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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  Group
         2009 2008
        $’000 $’000

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Decrease in Other Financial Liabilities     – (1,013)
Decrease in Finance Leases      (22) (630)
Dividends Paid to Minority Interests     (126) –
Increase in Cash Restricted in Use     – (41)
Dividends Paid       (4,538) (6,600)
Interest Paid        (3) (81)

Net Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities    (4,689) (8,365)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents   5,469 (4,754)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Statement of Cash Flows, Beginning Balance  28,851 33,605

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Statement of Cash Flows, 
 Ending Balance (Note 24)     34,320 28,851

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 December 2009

1. General
 The company is incorporated in Singapore with limited liability. The fi nancial statements are presented 

in Singapore dollars and they cover the parent and the group’s subsidiaries. 

 The board of directors approved and authorised these fi nancial statements for issue on 5 March 
2010.

 The principal activities of the company are those of investment holding and the distribution of 
nutritional supplement products, personal care products and healthcare equipment. It is listed on 
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are 
disclosed in Note 18 to the fi nancial statements.

 The registered offi ce is: 1 Changi North Street 1, Lobby 2, Singapore 498789. The company is 
domiciled in Singapore.

 The group’s business activities like others in many countries in the region and elsewhere, including 
Singapore, are experiencing severe economic diffi culties as a consequence of the current turmoil in 
the world’s fi nancial markets. This has resulted in violent fl uctuations in foreign currency exchange 
rates, volatile stock and commodity markets, uncertainty of the availability of bank fi nance to suppliers 
and customers and a slowdown in growth. The current fi nancial crisis may affect the company’s 
business, fi nancial condition, results of operations, cash fl ows and prospects for the foreseeable 
future. The fi nancial position of the group, its cash fl ows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities are 
described in the notes to the fi nancial statements. In addition the notes to the fi nancial statements 
include the group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; its fi nancial risk 
management objectives; details of its fi nancial instruments; and its exposures to credit risk and 
liquidity risk.

 The group has considerable fi nancial resources together with some good arrangements with a 
number of customers and suppliers. As a consequence, the management believes that the group 
is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the current uncertain economic 
outlook. After making enquiries, the management has a reasonable expectation that the company 
and the group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future. Accordingly, the group and the company continue to adopt the going concern basis in 
preparing annual report and accounts.

2. Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies
 Accounting Convention
 The fi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting 

Standards (“FRS”) and all related Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) as issued by the Singapore 
Accounting Standards Council and the Companies Act, Cap. 50. The fi nancial statements are 
prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention except where the FRS 
requires an alternative treatment (such as fair values) as disclosed where appropriate in these 
fi nancial statements.
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2. Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
 Basis of Presentation 
 The consolidation accounting method is used for the consolidated fi nancial statements that include 

the fi nancial statements made up to the end of the reporting year of the company and all of its directly 
and indirectly controlled subsidiaries. Consolidated fi nancial statements are the fi nancial statements 
of the group presented as those of a single economic entity. The consolidated fi nancial statements 
are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar 
circumstances. All signifi cant intragroup balances and transactions, including income, expenses and 
dividends, are eliminated in full on consolidation. The results of the investees acquired or disposed of 
during the fi nancial year are accounted for from the respective dates of acquisition or up to the dates 
of disposal which is the date on which effective control is obtained of the acquired business until that 
control ceases. On disposal the attributable amount of goodwill if any is included in the determination 
of the gain or loss on disposal.

 The company’s fi nancial statements have been prepared on the same basis, and as permitted by the 
Companies Act, Cap.50, no statement of income is presented for the company.

 Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements
 The preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 

requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the fi nancial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Apart from those involving estimations, management has made judgements in the 
process of applying the entity’s accounting policies. The areas requiring management’s most diffi cult, 
subjective or complex judgements, or areas where assumptions and estimates are signifi cant to the 
fi nancial statements, are disclosed at the end of this footnote, where applicable.

 Revenue Recognition 
 The revenue amount is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from the gross 

infl ow of economic benefi ts during the year arising from the course of the activities of the entity and 
it is shown net of any related sales taxes, estimated returns and rebates. Revenue from the sale of 
goods is recognised when signifi cant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer, 
there is neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership 
nor effective control over the goods sold, and the amount of revenue and the costs incurred or to be 
incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. Rental revenue is recognised on a 
time-proportion basis that takes into account the effective yield on the asset on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. Dividends from equity 
instruments is recognised as income when the entity’s right to receive payment is established.

 Employee Benefi ts
 Certain subsidiaries operate a defi ned contribution provident fund scheme, in which employees are 

entitled to join upon fulfi lling certain conditions. The assets of the fund are held separately from those 
of the entity in an independently administered fund. The entity contributes an amount equal to a fi xed 
percentage of the salary of each participating employee. Contributions are charged to profi t or loss 
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2. Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
 Employee Benefi ts (Cont’d)
 in the period to which they relate. This plan is in addition to the contributions to government 

managed retirement benefi t plans such as the Central Provident Fund in Singapore which specifi es 
the employer’s obligations which are dealt with as defi ned contribution retirement benefi t plans. 
For employee leave entitlement, the expected cost of short-term employee benefi ts in the form of 
compensated absences is recognised in the case of accumulating compensated absences, when 
the employees render service that increases their entitlement to future compensated absences; 
and in the case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur. A liability 
for bonuses is recognised where the entity is contractually obliged or where there is constructive 
obligation based on past practice.

 Income Tax 
 The income taxes are accounted using the asset and liability method that requires the recognition of 

taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future 
tax consequence of events that have been recognised in the fi nancial statements or tax returns. 
The measurements of current and deferred tax liabilities and assets are based on provisions of the 
enacted or substantially enacted tax laws; the effects of future changes in tax laws or rates are not 
anticipated. Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as income or as an expense in profi t or loss 
unless the tax relates to items that are recognised in the same or a different period outside profi t or 
loss. For such items recognised outside profi t or loss, the current tax and deferred tax are recognised 
(a) in other comprehensive income if the tax is related to an item recognised in other comprehensive 
income; and (b) directly in equity if the tax is related to an item recognised directly in equity. Deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same income tax 
authority. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting year 
and is reduced, if necessary, by the amount of any tax benefi ts that, based on available evidence, are 
not expected to be realised. A deferred tax amount is recognised for all temporary differences, unless 
the deferred tax amount arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which 
(i) is not a business combination; and (ii) at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting 
profi t nor taxable profi t (tax loss). A deferred tax liability or asset is recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except where the company is able to control 
the timing of the reversal of the taxable temporary difference and it is probable that the taxable 
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future or for deductible temporary differences, 
they will not reverse in the foreseeable future and they cannot be utilised against taxable profi ts.

 Foreign Currency Transactions 
 The functional currency is the Singapore dollar as it refl ects the primary economic environment in 

which the entity operates. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency 
at the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. At each end of the reporting year, recorded 
monetary balances and balances measured at fair value that are denominated in non-functional 
currencies are reported at the rates ruling at the end of the reporting year and fair value dates 
respectively. All realised and unrealised exchange adjustment gains and losses are dealt with in profi t 
or loss except when recognised in other comprehensive income and, if applicable, deferred in equity 
as qualifying cash fl ow hedges. The presentation is in the functional currency.
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2. Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
 Translation of Financial Statements of Foreign Entities
 Each entity in the group determines the appropriate functional currency as it refl ects the primary 

economic environment in which the entity operates. In translating the fi nancial statements of an investee 
for incorporation in the consolidated fi nancial statements the assets and liabilities denominated in 
currencies other than the functional currency of the company are translated at end of the reporting year’s 
rates of exchange and the income and expense items are translated at average rates of exchange for 
the year. The resulting translation adjustments (if any) are recognised in other comprehensive income 
and accumulated in a separate component of equity until the disposal of that investee.

 Borrowing Costs
 All borrowing costs that are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of 

funds that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are 
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until substantially all the activities necessary to prepare 
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete. Other borrowing costs are recognised 
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. The interest expense is calculated using the 
effective interest rate method.

 Property, Plant and Equipment
 Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to allocate the gross carrying amounts less their 

residual values over their estimated useful lives of each part of an item of these assets. The annual 
rates of depreciation are as follows:

 Freehold building – 2%
 Leasehold properties – Over the terms of lease of 1.3% to 2%
 Plant and equipment – 20% to 33.3%
 Freehold land – Not depreciated 

 An asset is depreciated when it is available for use until it is derecognised even if during that period 
the item is idle. Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the fi nancial statements.

 Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost on initial recognition and after initial recognition 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The gain or 
loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item and is 
recognised in profi t or loss. The residual value and the useful life of an asset are reviewed at least at 
each fi nancial year-end and, if expectations differ signifi cantly from previous estimates, the changes 
are accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate, and the depreciation charge for the current 
and future periods are adjusted.

 Cost also includes acquisition cost, any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
Subsequent costs are recognised as an asset only when it is probable that future economic benefi ts 
associated with the item will fl ow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All 
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profi t or loss when they are incurred.
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 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)
 Cost includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the 

site on which it is located the obligation for which any entity incurs either when the item is acquired 
or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to 
produce inventories during that period.

 Leased Assets
 Whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at 

the inception date, that is, whether (a) fulfi lment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a 
specifi c asset or assets (the asset); and (b) the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. Leases 
are classifi ed as fi nance leases if substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred 
to the lessee. All other leases are classifi ed as operating leases. At the commencement of the lease 
term, a fi nance lease is recognised as an asset and as a liability in the statement of fi nancial position 
at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum 
lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The discount rate used in calculating 
the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease, if this is 
practicable to determine, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used. Any initial direct costs of 
the lessee are added to the amount recognised as an asset. The excess of the lease payments over 
the recorded lease liability is treated as fi nance charges which are allocated to each period during 
the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. The 
assets are depreciated as owned depreciable assets. Leases where the lessor effectively retains 
substantially all the risks and benefi ts of ownership of the leased assets are classifi ed as operating 
leases. For operating leases, lease payments are recognised as an expense in profi t or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is representative 
of the time pattern of the user’s benefi t, even if the payments are not on that basis. Lease incentives 
received are recognised in profi t or loss as an integral part of the total lease expense. 

 Intangible Assets 
 An identifi able non-monetary asset without physical substance is recognised as an intangible asset at 

acquisition cost if it is probable that the expected future economic benefi ts that are attributable to the 
asset will fl ow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. After initial recognition, 
an intangible asset with fi nite useful life is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. An intangible asset with an indefi nite useful life is not amortised. 
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefi nite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of 
the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to 
generate net cash infl ows for the entity.

 The amortisable amount of an intangible asset with fi nite useful life is allocated on a systematic basis 
over the best estimate of its useful life from the point at which the asset is ready for use. The useful 
lives are as follows: 

 Trademarks – 5 to 10 years
 Product Licenses – 25 years
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2. Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
 Subsidiaries 
 A subsidiary is an entity including unincorporated and special purpose entity that is controlled by the 

group. Control is the power to govern the fi nancial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain 
benefi ts from its activities accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights or 
the ability to appoint or remove the majority of the members of the board of directors or to cast the 
majority of votes at meetings of the board of directors. The existence and effect of potential voting 
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the group 
controls another entity.

 In the company’s own separate fi nancial statements, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost 
less any allowance for impairment in value. Impairment loss recognised in profi t or loss for a subsidiary 
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The net book value of a subsidiary is not 
necessarily indicative of the amounts that would be realised in a current market exchange.

 Business Combinations 
 Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. There were none 

during the year. 

 Minority Interests
 The minority interests in the net assets and net results of consolidated subsidiary are shown 

separately in the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated income statement. Any minority 
interest in the acquiree (subsidiary) is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair 
value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. Losses applicable to the minority 
in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the 
group except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional 
investment to cover the losses.

 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 
 Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, an annual impairment test is performed 

at the same time every year on an intangible asset with an indefi nite useful life or an intangible asset 
not yet available for use. The carrying amount of other non-fi nancial assets is reviewed at each end 
of the reporting year for indications of impairment and, where an asset is impaired, it is written down 
through profi t or loss to its estimated recoverable amount. The impairment loss is the excess of the 
carrying amount over the recoverable amount and is recognised in profi t or loss. The recoverable 
amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value 
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash fl ows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that refl ects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specifi c to the asset. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at 
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifi able cash fl ows (cash-generating units). At each 
end of the reporting year, non-fi nancial assets other than goodwill with impairment loss recognised in 
prior periods are assessed for possible reversal of the impairment. An impairment loss is reversed only 
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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 Goodwill
 Goodwill is initially measured at its cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination 

over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifi able assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities recognised at fair value as part of the business combination process. After initial recognition, 
goodwill acquired in a business combination is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment 
losses. Goodwill is not amortised. 

 Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, goodwill (and also an intangible asset 
with an indefi nite useful life or an intangible asset not yet available for use) is tested for impairment, 
at least annually. Goodwill impairment is not reversed in any circumstances. 

 For the purpose of impairment testing and since the acquisition date of the business combination, 
goodwill is allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units that are 
expected to benefi t from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or 
liabilities of the acquiree were assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of units 
to which the goodwill is so allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill 
is monitored for internal management purposes and is not larger than a segment.

  Financial Assets
 Initial recognition and measurement and derecognition of fi nancial assets:

 A fi nancial asset is recognised on the statement of fi nancial position when, and only when, the 
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The initial recognition of 
fi nancial assets is at fair value normally represented by the transaction price. The transaction price 
for fi nancial asset not classifi ed at fair value through profi t or loss includes the transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the fi nancial asset. Transaction costs incurred on 
the acquisition or issue of fi nancial assets classifi ed at fair value through profi t or loss are expensed 
immediately. The transactions are recorded at the trade date. 

 Irrespective of the legal form of the transactions performed, fi nancial assets are derecognised when 
they pass the “substance over form” based derecognition test prescribed by FRS 39 relating to the 
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer of control. 

 Subsequent measurement
 Subsequent measurement based on the classifi cation of the fi nancial assets in one of the following 

four categories under FRS 39 is as follows:

 1.  Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss: As at end of the reporting year date, there
  were no fi nancial asset classifi ed in this category.

 2.  Loans and receivables: Loans and receivables are non-derivative fi nancial assets with fi xed or 
  determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Assets that are for sale 

immediately or in the near term are not classifi ed in this category. These assets are carried at 
amortised costs using the effective interest method (except that short-duration receivables with 

BEST WORLD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 200950



2. Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
  Financial Assets (Cont’d)
 Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

  no stated interest rate are normally measured at original invoice amount unless the effect of 
imputing interest would be signifi cant) minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an 
allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility. Impairment charges are provided only 
when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred as a result of one 
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that 
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash fl ows of the fi nancial asset 
or group of fi nancial assets that can be reliably estimated. The methodology ensures that an 
impairment loss is not recognised on the initial recognition of an asset. Losses expected as a 
result of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised. For impairment, the carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss 
is recognised in profi t or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. Typically the trade 
and other receivables are classifi ed in this category.

3.  Held-to-maturity fi nancial assets: These are non-derivative fi nancial assets with fi xed or 
determinable payments and fi xed maturity that the entity has the positive intention and ability 
to hold to maturity. Financial assets that upon initial recognition are designated as at fair value 
through profi t or loss or available-for-sale and those that meet the defi nition of loans and 
receivables are not classifi ed in this category. These assets are carried at amortised costs 
using the effective interest method minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an 
allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility. Impairment charges are provided only 
when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred. If that is the 
case, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. The 
gains and losses are recognised in profi t or loss when the investments are derecognised or 
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. Impairment losses recognised in profi t 
or loss are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the instrument can be 
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss. Long-
term investments in bonds and debt securities are classifi ed in this category.

4.  Available-for-sale fi nancial assets: These are non-derivative fi nancial assets that are designated
as available-for-sale on initial recognition or are not classifi ed in one of the previous categories. 
These assets are carried at fair value by reference to the transaction prices or current bid 
prices in an active market. If such market prices are not reliably determinable, management 
establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. Changes in fair value of available-for-
sale fi nancial assets (other than those relating to foreign exchange translation differences on 
non-monetary investments) are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated 
in a separate component of equity under the heading revaluation reserves. Such reserves 
are recycled to profi t or loss when realised through disposal. Impairments below cost are 
recognised in profi t or loss. When there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the 
cumulative loss is reclassifi ed from equity to profi t or loss as a reclassifi cation adjustment. If, 
in a subsequent period, the fair value of an equity instrument classifi ed as available-for-sale 
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
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  loss, it is reversed against revaluation reserves and is not subsequently reversed through 
profi t or loss. However for debt instruments classifi ed as available-for-sale impairment 
losses recognised in profi t or loss are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value 
of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the 
impairment loss. The weighted average method is used when determining the cost basis of 
publicly listed equities being disposed of. For non-equity instruments classifi ed as available-
for-sale the reversal of impairment is recognised in profi t or loss. They are classifi ed as non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months 
of the end of the reporting year. Usually non-current investments in equity shares and debt 
securities are classifi ed in this category but do not include subsidiaries, joint ventures, or 
associates. Unquoted investments are stated at cost less allowance for impairment in value 
where there are no market prices, and management is unable to establish fair value by using 
valuation techniques. For unquoted equity instruments, impairment losses are not reversed.

 Cash and Cash Equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents include bank and cash balances, on demand deposits and any highly 

liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. For the statement 
of cash fl ows, the item includes cash and cash equivalents less cash subject to restriction and bank 
overdrafts payable on demand that form an integral part of cash management. 

 Financial Liabilities
 Initial recognition and measurement
 A fi nancial liability is recognised on the statement of fi nancial position when, and only when, the 

entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The initial recognition of 
fi nancial liability is at fair value normally represented by the transaction price. The transaction price for 
fi nancial liability not classifi ed at fair value through profi t or loss includes the transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the fi nancial liability. Transaction costs incurred on 
the acquisition or issue of fi nancial liability classifi ed at fair value through profi t or loss are expensed 
immediately. The transactions are recorded at the trade date. Financial liabilities including bank and 
other borrowings are classifi ed as current liabilities unless there is an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting year.

 Subsequent measurement
 Subsequent measurement based on the classifi cation of the fi nancial liabilities in one of the following 

two categories under FRS 39 is as follows:

 1.  Liabilities at fair value through profi t or loss: At the end of the reporting year date there were
  no fi nancial liabilities classifi ed in this category.

2.  Other fi nancial liabilities: All liabilities which have not been classifi ed in the previous category
 fall into this residual category. These liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. Trade and other payables and borrowing are usually classifi ed in this category. 
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 Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)
 Items classifi ed within current trade and other payables are not usually re-measured as the 

obligation is usually known with a high degree of certainty and settlement is short-term.

 Financial Guarantees 
 A fi nancial guarantee contract requires that the issuer makes specifi ed payments to reimburse the 

holder for a loss when a specifi ed debtor fails to make payment when due. Financial guarantee 
contracts are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at the greater of (a) the 
amount determined in accordance with FRS 37 and (b) the amount initially recognised less, where 
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with FRS 18. 

 Fair Value of Financial Instruments
 The carrying values of current fi nancial instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-

term maturity of these instruments. Disclosures of fair value are not made when the carrying amount 
of current fi nancial instruments is a reasonable approximation of fair value. The fair values of non-
current fi nancial instruments may not be disclosed separately unless there are signifi cant differences 
at the end of the reporting year and in the event the fair values are disclosed in the relevant notes. 
The maximum exposure to credit risk is the fair value of the fi nancial instruments at the end of the 
reporting year. The fair value of a fi nancial instrument is derived from an active market or by using 
an acceptable valuation technique. The appropriate quoted market price for an asset held or liability 
to be issued is usually the current bid price without any deduction for transaction costs that may be 
incurred on sale or other disposal and, for an asset to be acquired or liability held, the asking price. 
If there is no market, or the markets available are not active, the fair value is established by using an 
acceptable valuation technique. The fair value measurements are classifi ed using a fair value hierarchy 
of 3 levels that refl ects the signifi cance of the inputs used in making the measurements, that is, Level 
1 for the use of quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; Level 
2 for the use of inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and Level 3 for 
the use of inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs). The level is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is signifi cant to the fair value 
measurement in its entirety. Where observable inputs that require signifi cant adjustment based on 
unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement.

 Inventories
 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost (fi rst in fi rst out method) and net realisable value. Net 

realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. A write down on cost is 
made for where the cost is not recoverable or if the selling prices have declined. Cost includes all 
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition. 
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 Equity
 Equity instruments are contracts that give a residual interest in the net assets of the company. 

Ordinary shares are classifi ed as equity. Equity instruments are recognised at the amount of proceeds 
received  net of incremental costs directly attributable to the transaction. Dividends on equity are 
recognised as liabilities when they are declared. Interim dividends are recognised when declared by 
the directors.

 
 Provisions
 A liability or provision is recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 

result of a past event, it is probable that an outfl ow of resources embodying economic benefi ts will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Provisions are made using best estimates of the amount required in settlement and, where the 
effect of the time value of money is material, the amount recognised is the present value of the 
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that refl ects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specifi c to the obligation. The increase 
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense. Changes in estimates are 
refl ected in the profi t or loss in the period they occur. 

 Critical Judgements, Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties
 The critical judgements made in the process of applying the accounting policies that have the most 

signifi cant effect on the amounts recognised in the fi nancial statements and the key assumptions 
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting 
year, that have a signifi cant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities within the next fi nancial year are discussed below. These estimates and assumptions 
are periodically monitored to ensure they incorporate all relevant information available at the date 
when fi nancial statements are prepared. However, this does not prevent actual fi gures differing from 
estimates.

 Allowance for doubtful accounts
 An allowance is made for doubtful trade accounts for estimated losses resulting from the subsequent 

inability of the customers to make required payments. If the fi nancial conditions of the customers were 
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may 
be required in future periods. Management generally analyses trade accounts receivables, historical 
bad debts, customer concentrations, customer creditworthiness, and changes in customer payment 
terms when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful trade accounts. To the extent that 
it is feasible impairment and uncollectibility is determined individually for each item. In cases where 
that process is not feasible, a collective evaluation of impairment is performed. At the end of the 
reporting year, the trade receivables carrying amount approximates the fair value and the carrying 
amounts might change materially within the next fi nancial year, but these changes would not arise 
from assumptions or other sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting year.

 Net realisable value of inventories
 A review is made periodically on inventory for excess inventory and declines in net realisable value 

below cost and an allowance is recorded against the inventory balance for any such declines. These
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2. Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
 Critical Judgements, Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties (Cont’d)
 Net realisable value of inventories (Cont’d)
 reviews require management to consider the future demand for the products. In any case, the 

realisable value represents the best estimate of the recoverable amount and is based on the 
acceptable evidence available at the end of the reporting year and inherently involves estimates 
regarding the future expected realisable value. The usual considerations for determining the amount 
of allowance or write-down include ageing analysis, technical assessment and subsequent events. In 
general, such an evaluation process requires signifi cant judgment and materially affects the carrying 
amount of inventories at the end of the reporting year. Possible changes in these estimates could 
result in revisions to the stated value of the inventories. The carrying amount of inventories at the end 
of the reporting year was $6,794,000.

 Income taxes
 The group has exposure to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Signifi cant judgement is involved 

in determining the group-wide provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and 
computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of 
business. The group recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of whether 
additional taxes will be due. Where the fi nal tax outcome of these matters is different from the 
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax 
provisions in the period in which such determination is made. The carrying amount of the group’s 
income tax payables, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets at the reporting year date were 
$1,994,000, $230,000 and $15,000 respectively.

 Deferred tax estimation
 Management judgment is required in determining the amount of current and deferred tax recognised 

as income or expense and the extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised. A deferred 
tax asset is recognised if it is more likely than not that suffi cient taxable income will be available in the 
future against which the temporary differences and unused tax losses can be utilised. Management 
also considers future taxable income and tax planning strategies in assessing whether deferred tax 
assets should be recognised in order to refl ect changed circumstances as well as tax regulations. 
As a result, due to their inherent nature, it is likely that deferred tax calculation relates to complex 
fact patterns for which assessments of likelihood are judgmental and not susceptible to precise 
determination. The deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at the end of the reporting year was 
$15,000 and $230,000 respectively.

 Useful lives of plant and equipment
 The estimates for the useful lives and related depreciation charges for plant and equipment is based 

on commercial and production factors which could change signifi cantly as a result of technical 
innovations and competitor actions in response to severe market conditions. The depreciation 
charges are increased where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or the carrying 
amounts written off or written down for technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been 
abandoned or sold. It is impracticable to disclose the extent of the possible effects. It is reasonably 
possible, based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within the next fi nancial year that are different 
from assumptions could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of balances affected. 
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2. Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
 Critical Judgements, Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties (Cont’d)
 Useful lives of plant and equipment (Cont’d)
 The carrying amount of the class of assets affected by the assumption is $6,949,000 (2008: 

$8,265,000).

 Estimated impairment of goodwill
 An assessment is made annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment loss based on 

the recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (“CGU”). The recoverable amounts of the 
CGUs were determined based on value in use calculations and these calculations require the use of 
estimates in relation to future cash fl ows and suitable discount rates as disclosed in Note 17A. Actual 
outcomes could vary from these estimates.

 Impairment of intangible assets
 An assessment is made of the carrying value of identifi able intangible assets, annually or more 

frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that such carrying value may not be 
recoverable. Factors that trigger an impairment review include underperformance relative to historical 
or projected future results, signifi cant changes in the manner of the use of the acquired assets or 
the strategy for the overall business and signifi cant negative industry or economic trends. The most 
signifi cant variables in determining cash fl ows are discount rates, terminal values, the number of 
years on which to base the cash fl ow projections, as well as the assumptions and estimates used 
to determine the cash infl ows and outfl ows. Amounts estimated could differ materially from what will 
actually occur in the future.

3. Related Party Transactions
 FRS 24 defi nes a related party as an entity or person that directly or indirectly through one or more 

intermediaries controls, is controlled by, or is under common or joint control with, the entity in governing 
the fi nancial and operating policies, or that has an interest in the entity that gives it signifi cant infl uence 
over the entity in fi nancial and operating decisions. It also includes members of the key management 
personnel or close members of the family of any individual referred to herein and others who have 
the ability to control, jointly control or signifi cantly infl uence by or for which signifi cant voting power 
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any such individual. The defi nition includes parents, 
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and post-employment benefi t plans, if any.

 3.1  Related companies
  Related companies in these fi nancial statements include the members of the company’s 

group of companies.

  There are transactions and arrangements between the company and members of the group 
and the effects of these on the basis determined between the parties are refl ected in these 
fi nancial statements. The current intercompany balances are unsecured without fi xed repayment 
terms and interest unless stated otherwise. For non-current balances if signifi cant an interest 
is imputed unless stated otherwise based on the prevailing market interest rate for similar debt 
less the interest rate if any provided in the agreement for the balance. For fi nancial guarantees 
a fair value is imputed and is recognised accordingly if signifi cant where no charge is payable.
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3.  Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)
 3.1  Related companies (Cont’d)

  Intragroup transactions and balances that have been eliminated in these consolidated fi nancial 
statements are not disclosed as related party transactions and balances.

3.2  Other related parties
  There are transactions and arrangements between the company and related parties and the 

effects of these on the basis determined between the parties are refl ected in these fi nancial 
statements. The current related party balances are unsecured without fi xed repayment terms 
and interest unless stated otherwise. For non-current balances if signifi cant an interest is 
imputed unless stated otherwise based on the prevailing market interest rate for similar debt 
less the interest rate if any provided in the agreement for the balance. For fi nancial guarantees 
a fair value is imputed and is recognised accordingly if signifi cant where no charge is payable. 

  Signifi cant related party transactions:
  In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the fi nancial 

statements, this item includes the following:
  Group
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

Related parties
Sales of goods     122 120
Commission expenses     325 296
Subsidised travel expenses     10 –
Consultancy fee expenses     140 111

 3.3  Key management compensation
  Group
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

Salaries and other short-term employee benefi ts   4,155 4,944

  The above amounts are included under employee benefi ts expense. Included in the above 
amounts are the following items:

  Group
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

Remuneration of directors of the company   2,763 2,878
Fees to directors of the company    120 120
Fees to a company in which a director has an interest   26 26

  Further information about the remuneration of individual directors is provided in the report on 
corporate governance.

  Key management personnel are directors and those persons having authority and responsibility 
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company, directly or indirectly. The 
above amounts for key management compensation are for all the directors and other key 
management personnel.
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4. Financial Information By Segments
 4A.  Information about Reportable Segment Profi t or Loss, Assets and Liabilities

  FRS 108 Operating Segments was applied for the fi rst time this year. FRS 108 requires the 
disclosure of information about operating segments, products and services, the geographical 
areas, and the major customers. It is a disclosure standard which results in a redesignation of 
the group’s reportable segments, but has no impact on the reported results or fi nancial position 
of the group. The segment information for the prior years that is reported as comparative 
information is restated to conform to the requirements of FRS 108.

  For management purposes the group is organised into two major operating segments: direct 
selling and sales through agencies and retail. Such structural organisation is determined 
by the nature of risks and returns associated to each business segment and it defi nes 
the management structure as well as the internal reporting system. It represents the basis 
on which the management reports the primary segment information. They are managed 
separately because each business requires different strategies.

  The segments are as follows:
 a.  Direct selling and sales through agencies segment comprises sales to customers
   through direct selling channels in Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Hong Kong, Taiwan, 

  Thailand, Australia, Brunei and Vietnam; and

 b.  Retail segment comprises sales to retail customers through retailers in the People’s 
  Republic of China.

  Inter-segment sales are measured on the basis that the entity actually uses to price the 
transfers. Internal transfer pricing policies of the group are as far as practicable based on 
market prices. The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those 
described in the summary of signifi cant accounting policies.

  The management reporting system evaluates performances mainly based on a measure of 
Earnings before depreciation, amortisation, interests and income taxes (called “Recurring 
EBITDA”). This measurement basis excludes the effect of expenditure from the operating 
segments such as goodwill impairment that are not expected to recur regularly in every year.

  The information on each product and service, or each group of similar products and services 
is not available and the cost to develop it would be excessive.

  Segment results consist of costs directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can 
be allocated on a reasonable basis.

  Segment assets consist principally of property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets, 
inventories, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

 
  Segment liabilities consist principally of trade and other payables.
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4. Financial Information By Segments (Cont’d)
 4A.  Information about Reportable Segment Profi t or Loss, Assets and Liabilities (Cont’d)

  Unallocated items comprise other fi nancial assets, goodwill, other assets, other receivables, 
fi nance leases, other fi nancial liabilities, income tax payable and deferred tax assets and 
liabilities.

 4B.  Profi t or Loss from Continuing Operations and Reconciliations
       Direct selling
       & sales through   
       agencies Retail Unallocated Group
       $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Continuing Operations 2009
Revenue by Segment
External sales and services    68,829 4,127 – 72,956

Recurring EBITDA    14,030 (1,231) – 12,799
Interest income    – – 219 219
Interest income from other receivable   – – 293 293
Finance costs    – – (3) (3)
Depreciation     (1,591) (182) – (1,773)
Amortisation     (67) (79) – (146)

Profi t (Loss) before Tax from 
  Continuing Operations   12,372 (1,492) 509 11,389

Income tax expenses       (1,678)

Profi t from Continuing Operations      9,711

Continuing Operations 2008
Revenue by Segment
External sales and services    93,143 2,920 – 96,063

Recurring EBITDA    16,042 (1,046) – 14,996
Interest income    – – 286 286
Finance costs    – – (81) (81)
Depreciation     (1,533) (168) – (1,701)
Amortisation     (43) (124) – (167)

Profi t (Loss) before Tax from
  Continuing Operations   14,466 (1,338) 205 13,333

Income tax expenses       (3,126)

Profi t from Continuing Operations      10,207
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4. Financial Information By Segments (Cont’d)
 4C.  Assets and Reconciliations

       Direct selling
       & sales through   
       agencies Retail Unallocated Group
       $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2009
Total assets for reportable segments   48,466 9,832 – 58,298
Unallocated
Deferred tax assets    – – 15 15
Other fi nancial assets    – – 1,206 1,206
Other unallocated amounts    – – 5,629 5,629

Total group assets    48,466 9,832 6,850 65,148

2008
Total assets for reportable segments   48,593 6,409 – 55,002
Unallocated
Deferred tax assets    – – 16 16
Other fi nancial assets    – – 3,709 3,709
Other unallocated amounts    – – 7,055 7,055

Total group assets    48,593 6,409 10,780 65,782

 4D.  Liabilities and Reconciliations
       Direct selling
       & sales through   
       agencies Retail Unallocated Group
       $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2009
Total Liabilities for reportable segments   (8,353) (542) – (8,895)
Unallocated
Deferred tax liabilities    – – (230) (230)
Income tax payable    – – (1,994) (1,994)

Total group liabilities    (8,353) (542) (2,224) (11,119)

2008
Total Liabilities for reportable segments   (12,472) (324) – (12,796)
Unallocated
Finance leases    – – (22) (22)
Deferred tax liabilities    – – (279) (279)
Income tax payable    – – (2,833) (2,833)

Total group liabilities    (12,472) (324) (3,134) (15,930)
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4. Financial Information By Segments (Cont’d)
 4E.  Other Material Items and Reconciliations

       Direct selling
       & sales through   
       agencies Retail Unallocated Group
       $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2009
Impairment of intangible assets    – 213 – 213
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary   – 317 – 317
Additions to property, plant and equipment  937 19 – 956
Additions to intangible assets    148 5 – 153

2008
Impairment of intangible assets    – 400 – 400
Additions to property, plant and equipment  1,582 86 – 1,668
Additions to intangible assets     63 – – 63

 4F.  Geographical Information
  The group’s operations are mainly located in Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Taiwan, Hong 

Kong, People’s Republic of China and Thailand. The group’s direct selling operates in 
Singapore, Malaysia, Thailand, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Indonesia. The retail division operates 
in the People’s Republic of China.

The following table provides an analysis of the group revenue by geographical markets,
irrespective of the origin of the goods and services:
  Revenue Non-current assets
       2009 2008 2009 2008
       $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Singapore     13,300 17,422 5,494 6,328

Malaysia     11,206 19,290 1,007 1,233
Indonesia     21,770 44,313 748 148
Thailand     9,620 2,155 130 168
Unallocated(1)    17,060 12,883 1,720 2,767

Subtotal for all foreign countries   59,656 78,641 3,605 4,316

Total      72,956 96,063 9,099 10,644

 (1) Un allocated comprise mainly Hong Kong, Taiwan, People’s Republic of China, Australia,
  Brunei, Vietnam and Myanmar.

  Revenues are attributed to countries on the basis of the customer’s location. The non-current 
assets are analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located. The non-current 
assets include property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and exclude any fi nancial 
instruments and deferred tax assets.
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4. Financial Information By Segments (Cont’d)
 4G.  Information About Major Customers

  There are no customers with revenue transactions of over 10% of the group revenue.

5. Revenue
  Group
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 Sale of goods      72,956 96,063

6. Other Operating Income
  Group
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 Miscellaneous income     175 107
 Interest income from other receivable (Note 22)    293 –
 Management fee income     263 303

         731 410

7. Other Credits and (Other Charges)

  Group
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 Allowance for impairment on other receivables    – (19)
 Allowance for impairment on trade receivables    (294) (188)
 Allowance for impairment on intangible assets    (213) (400)
 Inventories written down     (31) –
 Foreign exchange adjustment gains (losses), net   1,325 (2,832)
 Plant and equipment written off     (16) –
 Loss on disposal of plant and equipment    (13) (16)
 Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 13)    317 –
 Government grant income from jobs credit scheme   311 – 
 Net        1,386 (3,455) 
 
 Presented in profi t or loss as:
 Other Credits      1,953 –
 Other Charges      (567) (3,455) 
 Net        1,386 (3,455)

BEST WORLD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 200962



8. Finance Costs
  Group
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 Interest expense      3 81

9. Other Expenses
 The major components include the following:
  Group
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 Included in Distribution Costs
 Freelance commission     22,664 33,008 

 Included in Administrative Expenses
 Rental of premises      2,423 2,054

10. Employee Benefi ts Expense
  Group
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 Employee benefi ts expense including directors    9,482 9,684
 Contribution to defi ned contribution plan    606 616

 Total employee benefi ts expense included in Administrative Expenses  10,088 10,300

11. Items in Profi t or Loss
 In addition to the charges and credits disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the fi nancial statements, 

this item includes the following charges:
  Group
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 Other fees to independent auditors:
   – Company’s independent auditor    40 43
   – Other independent auditors    10 27
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12. Income Tax
 12A.  Components of tax expense (income) recognised in profi t or loss include:
  Group
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

   Current tax expense (income)
   Current tax expense     1,795 3,215
   Over adjustments to current tax in respect of prior periods  (69) (108)

 

   Subtotal      1,726 3,107

 
   Deferred tax expense (income)
   Deferred tax (income) expense    (46) 19
   Deferred tax income relating to changes in tax rate   (2) –

 

   Subtotal      (48) 19
 

   Total income tax expense     1,678 3,126

  The reconciliation of income taxes below is determined by applying the Singapore corporate 
tax rate where the parent is domiciled. The income tax in profi t or loss varied from the income 
tax amount determined by applying the Singapore income tax rate of 17% (2008: 18%) to 
profi t or loss before income tax as a result of the following differences:

  Group
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 Profi t Before Tax     11,389 13,333 
 Income tax expense at the above rate    1,936 2,400
 Non-taxable items     (1,555) (678)
 Non-deductible items     1,467 2,411
 Tax exemptions     (228) (587)
 Deferred tax assets valuation allowance    (9) (14)
 Double taxation relief     (2) (2)
 Over adjustments to tax in respect of previous periods  (69) (108)
 Effect of different tax rates in different countries   162 (349)
 Change in tax rate     (2) –
 Prior year unrecorded tax loss carry forward utilised   (22) –
 Other items less than 3% each    – 53

 Total income tax expense     1,678 3,126 

  There are no income tax consequences of dividends to owners of the company.

  In 2009, the government enacted a change in the national income tax rate from 18% to 17%.
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12. Income Tax (Cont’d)
 12B.  Deferred tax expense (income) recognised in profi t or loss include:
  Group
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 Excess of net book value of plant and equipment over tax values  (49) 34
 Tax loss carry forwards     10 10
 Deferred tax assets valuation allowance    (9) (14)
 Unabsorbed wear and tear allowances    (1) –
 Unrealised exchange losses     1 (11)

 Total deferred tax (income) expense recognised in profi t or loss  (48) 19

 12C.  Deferred tax balance in the statements of fi nancial position:
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised 
   in profi t or loss
 Excess of net book value of plant 
   and equipment over tax values  (230) (279) (184) (233)
 Tax loss carry forwards   153 163 – –
 Unabsorbed wear and tear allowances  7 8 – –
 Deferred tax assets valuation allowance  (157) (166) – (3)
 Unrealised exchange losses   12 11 – –

 Deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised 
   in other comprehensive income
 Tax loss used in group relief   – – – 3

 Net total of deferred tax liabilities  (215) (263) (184) (233)

   Presented in the statements of fi nancial position as follows:
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Deferred tax liabilities   (230) (279) (184) (233)
 Deferred tax assets   15 16 – –

 Net position    (215) (263) (184) (233) 

  It is impracticable to estimate the amount expected to be settled or used within one year. 
For the Singapore companies, the realisation of the future income tax benefi ts from tax loss 
carryforwards and temporary differences from capital allowances is available for an unlimited 
future period subject to the conditions imposed by the law including the retention of majority 
shareholders as defi ned. 

  Temporary differences arising in connection with interest in subsidiaries are insignifi cant.
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13. Disposal of a Subsidiary
 The following table summarises the carrying value of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, Best 

World (Hunan) Health Sciences Company Ltd that was sold on 8 October 2009. 

 The gain on disposal of the subsidiary and the results of the subsidiary for the previous year and for 
the period from the beginning of the year to 30 September 2009, which have been included in the 
consolidated fi nancial statements, were as follows:

  Group
        Period Year
        ended 30 ended 31
        September December
        2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 Revenue       1,881 2,881
 Expenses       (3,026) (3,779)

 Loss before tax      (1,145) (898)
 Income tax expense      – –

 Loss after tax before disposal loss     (1,145) (898)

 Gain on disposal of subsidiary (Note 7)    317
 Income tax expense      –

 Gain after tax on disposal     317

 Total loss on disposal      (828)

 The following table summarises the carrying value of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, Best 
World (Hunan) Health Sciences Company Ltd that was sold on 8 October 2009.

  Group
        Date of End of
        disposal Year
        2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 Plant and Equipment      465 620
 Inventories      – 891
 Other assets      48 22
 Trade and other receivables     1,125 4,696
 Cash and cash equivalents     525 1,610
 Trade and other payables     (2,480) (1,859)

 Net assets disposed of     (317)
 Gain on disposal      317

 Total consideration satisfy by cash proceeds    *

 Net cash outfl ow on disposal:
 Cash consideration      *
 Cash balance disposed of     525

 Net cash outfl ow      525

* Denotes amount less than $1,000.
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14. Earnings Per Share
 The following table illustrates the numerators and denominators used to calculate basic and diluted 

earnings per share of no par value:
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 A.  Numerator: earnings attributable to equity
   Continuing operations: attributable to equity holders   9,671 10,626

         2009 2008
       ’000 ’000

 B.  Denominators: weighted average number of equity shares
   – Basic      206,250 206,250
   – Diluted      206,250 206,250

 The weighted average number of equity shares refers to shares in circulation during the year. 

 Basic earnings per share ratio is based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during each period. The diluted earnings per share is based on the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares and dilutive ordinary share equivalents outstanding during each period.

 Both basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive ordinary share 
equivalents outstanding during the period.

15. Dividends on Equity Shares
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 Interim tax exempt (one-tier) dividend paid of 1.2 cents
   (2008: 1.2 cents) per share     2,475 2,475
 Final tax exempt (one-tier) dividend paid of 0.5 cents
   (2008: 1.2 cents) per share     1,031 2,475
 Special tax exempt (one-tier) dividend paid of 0.5 cents
   (2008: 0.8 cents) per share     1,031 1,650

         4,537* 6,600

*  Amount does not agree to the Statements of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows due to rounding 
difference.

 In respect of the current year, the directors propose that a fi nal tax exempt dividend of 0.5 cents 
per share totalling $1,031,000 and a special tax exempt dividend of 0.5 cents per share totalling 
$1,031,000 be paid to shareholders after the annual general meeting. There are no income tax 
consequences. This dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the forthcoming annual 
general meeting and has not been included as a liability in these fi nancial statements. The proposed 
dividend for 2009 is payable in respect of all ordinary shares in issue at the end of the reporting year 
and including the new shares, if any, issued up to the date the dividend becomes payable.
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment
     Freehold Freehold Plant and Leasehold 
     land building equipment Properties Total

Group    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Cost
 At 1 January 2008   915 400 9,184 2,279 12,778
 Additions    – – 1,668 – 1,668
 Disposals    – – (1,316) – (1,316)
 Foreign exchange adjustments  (3) – (163) (33) (199)

 At 31 December 2008  912 400 9,373 2,246 12,931
 Additions    – – 956 – 956
 Disposals    – – (318) – (318)
 Elimination on disposal of a subsidiary – – (763) – (763)
 Foreign exchange adjustments  (1) – (27) (18) (46)

 At 31 December 2009  911 400 9,221 2,228 12,760 

 Depreciation and impairment
 At 1 January 2008   – 120 3,375 101 3,596
 Depreciation for the year  – 8 1,661 32 1,701
 Disposals    – – (603) – (603)
 Foreign exchange adjustments  – – (26) (2) (28)

 At 31 December 2008  – 128 4,407 131 4,666
 Depreciation for the year  – 8 1,733 32 1,773
 Disposals    – – (296) – (296)
 Elimination on disposal of a subsidiary – – (298) – (298)
 Foreign exchange adjustments  – – (33) (1) (34)

 At 31 December 2009  – 136 5,513 162 5,811

 
 Net book value
 At 1 January 2008   915 280 5,809 2,178 9,182

 At 31 December 2008  912 272 4,966 2,115 8,265

 At 31 December 2009  911 264 3,708 2,066 6,949
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)
      Freehold Freehold Plant and 
      land building equipment Total

Company     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Cost
 At 1 January 2008    847 400 5,128 6,375
 Additions     – – 1,254 1,254
 Disposals     – – (1,142) (1,142)
 Foreign exchange adjustments   – – 11 11

 At 31 December 2008   847 400 5,251 6,498
 Additions     – – 244 244
 Disposals     – – (274) (274)

 At 31 December 2009   847 400 5,221 6,468

 Depreciation and impairment
 At 1 January 2008    – 120 1,787 1,907
 Depreciation for the year   – 8 882 890
 Disposals     – – (393) (393)
 Foreign exchange adjustments   – – 2 2

 At 1 January 2009    – 128 2,278 2,406
 Depreciation for the year   – 8 986 994
 Disposals     – – (252) (252)

 At 31 December 2009   – 136 3,012 3,148

 Net book value
 At 1 January 2008    847 280 3,341 4,468

 At 31 December 2008   847 272 2,973 4,092

 At 31 December 2009   847 264 2,209 3,320

 The depreciation expense is charged as administrative expenses.

 Certain leasehold land and property of a subsidiary at carrying value of $588,000 (2008: $606,000) 
are mortgaged to banks to secure banking facilities granted by the banks. The banking facilities 
remain unutilised as at the end of reporting year (Note 28E).
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17. Intangible Assets
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Goodwill (Note 17A)    357 357 – –
 Other Intangible Assets (Note 17B)   1,793 2,022 237 201

 At end of the year    2,150 2,379 237 201

17A.  Goodwill
  Group
         2009 2008
        $’000 $’000

   Cost
   At beginning and at end of the year    357 357

  Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. Each of 
those cash-generating units represents the group’s investment in each subsidiary as follows:

  Group
         2009 2008
        $’000 $’000

   Name of subsidiaries
   Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd. (“BWLSB”)   324 324
   BWL (Thailand) Company Limited (“BWLT”)   6 6
   Best World China Investment Pte. Ltd. (“BWC”)   27 27

   Cost as at end of the year     357 357

  The goodwill was tested for impairment at the end of the reporting year. An impairment loss 
is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit (‘’CGU’’) 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating 
unit (“CGU”) is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell or its value in use. The recoverable 
amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on its value in use method. 
The value is regarded as the lowest level for fair value measurement as the valuation includes 
inputs for the asset that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

  In this case no impairment charges were recognised because the carrying amount of all cash 
generating units was lower than their recoverable amount.

  The value in use was determined by management. The key assumptions used for value in use 
of each cash generating unit are consistent with those used for the calculation last performed 
for BWLSB and are analysed as follows:
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17. Intangible Assets (Cont’d)
17A.  Goodwill (Cont’d)

         2009 2008

  1. Estimated discount rates using pre-tax rates that refl ect current
   market assessments at the risks specifi c to the CGUs. 15.36 7.44
  2. Growth rates based on industry growth forecasts and not
   exceeding the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
   markets. 0% 0%
  3. Cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial 
   budgets approved by management for the next fi ve years. 5 years 5 years

17B.  Other Intangible Assets
       Product
       license Trademarks Total
  Group    $’000 $’000 $’000

   Cost
At 1 January 2008    2,002 388 2,390
Additions     – 63 63
Foreign exchange adjustments   98 19 117
Reclassifi cation from (to) other assets   183 (68) 115

At 31 December 2008    2,283 402 2,685
Additions     – 153 153
Foreign exchange adjustments   (215) 4 (211)

At 31 December 2009    2,068 559 2,627

Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2008    – 96 96
Amortisation for the year    123 44 167
Impairment for the year    400 – 400

At 31 December 2008    523 140 663
Amortisation for the year    76 70 146
Impairment for the year    213 – 213
Foreign exchange adjustments   (186) (2) (188)

At 31 December 2009    626 208 834

Net book value
At 1 January 2008    2,002 292 2,294

At 31 December 2008    1,760 262 2,022

At 31 December 2009    1,442 351 1,793

       (a)
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17. Intangible Assets (Cont’d)
17B.  Other Intangible Assets (Cont’d)

        Trademarks Total
  Company     $’000 $’000

   Cost
At 1 January 2008     273 273
Additions      28 28

At 31 December 2008     301 301
Additions      81 81

At 31 December 2009     382 382

Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2008     70 70
Amortisation for the year     30 30

At 31 December 2008     100 100
Amortisation for the year     45 45

At 31 December 2009     145 145

Net book value
At 1 January 2008     203 203

At 31 December 2008     201 201

At 31 December 2009     237 237

The amortisation expense is charged as administrative expenses in profi t or loss.

a.  The company entered into an asset sale and purchase agreement dated 16 January 
2004, as supplemented by Supplemental Agreement dated 16 February 2004 (the 
“Vigor Acquisition Agreement”) with Chengdu Weige’er Stock Holding Co., Ltd and 
Chengdu Tonglian Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd to acquire 20 product licences, inventories 
and all the trademarks in respect of the range of nutritional supplements sold and 
marketed in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) for the past 5 years under the 
brand “Vigor”. The consideration payable in respect of this acquisition is approximately 
but not more than RMB20 million (S$4.2 million).

  On 9 February 2004, the company, Best World China Investments Pte. Ltd. (‘’BWC’’), 
Chengdu Weige’er Stock Holding Co., Ltd and Chengdu Tonglian Pharmaceutical 
Co., Ltd entered into an agreement to novate all the company’s rights, interest and 
obligations under the Vigor Acquisition Agreement to BWC.
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17. Intangible Assets (Cont’d)
17B.  Other Intangible Assets (Cont’d)

  On 9 August 2005, BWC, Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., Ltd, Chengdu Weige’er 
Stock Holding Co., Ltd and Chengdu Tonglian Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd entered into 
an agreement to further novate BWC’s rights, interest and obligations under Vigor 
Acquisition Agreement to Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

  Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (“BWL Shanghai”) completed the acquisition 
under the Vigor Acquisition Agreement during 2006 and acquired 16 product licenses 
from the vendor. Four product licences and certain inventories stated in the agreement 
were not transferred to BWL Shanghai. The net consideration for the acquisition of the 
16 product licenses amounted to RMB10.03 million (S$2.0 million).

  The useful lives of the product licenses are estimated to be 25 years. Amortisation 
of the product licenses commenced in 2008 when the products under the product 
licenses commenced trading. An impairment test was performed. The recoverable 
amount was determined by management based on the estimated present value of the 
future cash fl ows attributable to the product licenses. The key assumptions used for 
the calculation are as follows:

         2009 2008

    1. Estimated discount rates using pre-tax rates that
     refl ect current market assessments at the risks
     specifi c to the CGUs. 12.25% 12%
    2. Growth rates for year 2010 is based on company
     growth forecasts and subsequently the growth
     rates are as follows:
      – For the year 2010 – 7%
      – For the year 2011 to 2012 30% 30%
      – From year 2013 to 2014 20% 20%
      – From year 2015 to 2034 3% 3%
    3. Cash fl ow forecasts derived from the most recent
     fi nancial budgets approved by management. 24 years 25 years
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18. Investments in Subsidiaries
  Company
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 Cost at the beginning of the year     11,050 11,050
 Additions       6,548 –
 Disposals       (7,785) –

 Unquoted equity shares at cost     9,813 11,050
 Less allowance for impairment     (52) (1,855)

 Balance at end of the year     9,761 9,195

 Net book value of subsidiaries     15,670 11,326

 Analysis of above amounts denominated in non-functional currency
 Malaysian Ringgits      1,753 1,753
 Indonesian Rupiahs      3,037 115
 New Taiwan Dollars      94 94
 United States Dollars      3,457 7,782

 Movement in allowance for impairment
 Balance at beginning of the year     1,855 52
 Impairment losses (reversed)/charged to profi t or loss   (1,800) 1,803
 Impairment written-off     (3) –

 Balance at end of the year     52 1,855
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18. Investments in Subsidiaries (Cont’d)
 The subsidiaries held by the company and the group are listed below:
     Cost in books Percentage of equity
     of company held by group
  Name of subsidiaries, country of incorporation,  2009 2008 2009 2008
  place of operations and principal activities  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Held by the company
 Best World Lifestyle Pte Ltd(a)   1,251 1,251 100 100
 Singapore
 Distribution of cosmetics, skin care, nutritional
   supplements, personal care products
   and healthcare equipment

 Avance Living Pte. Ltd.(a)   4 4 100 100
 Singapore
 Distribution of nutritional supplements, personal care
   products and healthcare equipment

 Institute of BWL Pte. Ltd.(a)(m)   – 3 – 100
 Singapore
 Provision of courses for beauty therapy

 Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd.(b)   1,753 1,753 70 70
 Malaysia
 Import and distribution of cosmetics, skin care, 
   nutritional supplements, personal care
   products and healthcare equipment

 PT Best World Indonesia(c)   3,037 115 70 70
 Indonesia
 Import and distribution of cosmetics, skin care, 
   nutritional supplements, personal care products
   and healthcare equipment

 BWL (Thailand) Company Limited(d)(k)  48 48 49 49
 Thailand
 Import and distribution of cosmetics, skin care, 
   nutritional supplements, personal care products
   and healthcare equipment

 Best World China Investments Pte. Ltd.(a)  * * 100 100
 Singapore
 Investment holding company
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18. Investments in Subsidiaries (Cont’d)
 The subsidiaries held by the company and the group are listed below:
     Cost in books Percentage of equity
     of company held by group
  Name of subsidiaries, country of incorporation,  2009 2008 2009 2008
  places of operations and principal activities  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Held by the company
 Best World Lifestyle (HK) Company Limited(e)  118 * 100 100
 Hong Kong
 Distribution of cosmetics, skin care, 
   nutritional supplements, personal care products
   and healthcare equipment

 BBWL Sdn Bhd(f)    * * 100 100
 Brunei
 Import and distribution of cosmetics, skin care, 
   nutritional supplements, personal care products
   and healthcare equipment

 Best World Lifestyle Pty Ltd(g)   * * 100 100
 Australia
 Import and distribution of cosmetics, skin care, 
   nutritional supplements, personal care products
   and healthcare equipment

 Best World (Hunan) Health Sciences Company Ltd(n) – 7,782 – 100
  (Disposed on 8 October 2009)
 People’s Republic of China
 Distribution of skin care and health-related products

 Best World Lifestyle (Taiwan) Co., Ltd(h)  94 94 100 100
 Taiwan
 Distribution of health food, network services, sanitary
   products, skin care and cosmetic products

 BWL Korea Co., Ltd(o)   51 – 100 –
 (Incorporated on 3 March 2009)
 Korea
 Distribution of skin care, health food and equipment

 PT Best World Lifestyle Indonesia(c)(l)  – – – –
 Indonesia
 Distribution of cosmetics, skin care, 
   nutritional supplements, personal care products
   and healthcare equipment
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18. Investments in Subsidiaries (Cont’d)
 The subsidiaries held by the company and the group are listed below:
     Cost in books Percentage of equity
     of company held by group
  Name of subsidiaries, country of incorporation,  2009 2008 2009 2008
  places of operations and principal activities  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Held by the company
 Best World (Qingdao) Health Sciences  3,457 – 100 –
   Company Ltd(j) 

  (Incorporated on 8 July 2009)
 People’s Republic of China
 Distribution of skin care and health-related products

       9,813 11,050

 Held through Best World China Investments Pte. Ltd.
 Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., Ltd(i)  3,006 3,006 100 100
 People’s Republic of China
 Import and distribution of cosmetics, skin care,
   nutritional supplements, personal care 
   products and healthcare  equipment. Has 
   not commenced commercial operations.

a. Audited by RSM Chio Lim LLP, a member of RSM International.
b. Audited by Crowe Horwath Malaysia.
c. Audited by RSM AAJ Associates, a member of RSM International.
d. Audited by RSM Nelson Wheeler (Thailand) Limited, a member of RSM International.
e. Audited by RSM Nelson Wheeler, a member of RSM International.
f. Audited by Lee & Raman.
g. Audited by DL&P Pty Ltd.
h. Audited by Kwang-I Earnest & Co., CPAs, a member of RSM International.
i. Audited by RSM China CPA., a member of RSM International.
j. Audited by Qingdao Haiyuan Certifi ed Public Accountants.
k. The group considers the company as a subsidiary of the group as the group has management control over the company through 

a shareholders’ agreement.
l. The entity is not owned by the group directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, but is consolidated as the group is able to have 

control over the entity’s fi nancial and operating policies by virtue of an agreement with the shareholders of the entity. The group 
has 70% effective control over the entity.

m. The company was struck off on 8 July 2009.
n. The subsidiary was disposed during the year at the date shown (Note 13).
o. Not audited, as it is not signifi cant.

 

 As is required by Rule 716 of the Listing Manual of The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading 
Limited, the audit committee and the board of directors of the company have satisfi ed themselves that 
the appointment of different auditors for certain of its overseas subsidiaries would not compromise 
the standard and effectiveness of the audit of the group.

 
* Denotes amount less than $1,000.

77COME ON BOARD



Notes to the Financial Statements
31 December 2009

19. Other Receivables
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Non-current
 Loan receivables from subsidiaries (Notes 3 and 18) – – 3,289 3,480

a.  A loan receivable of $Nil (2008: 191,000) at company level is for a period of 3 years from 
1 October 2007. The principal of the loan is repayable by the end of the expiry term. The 
agreement for the loan receivable provides that it is unsecured and with 3.5% per annum 
of interest. The interest is repayable at the end of each 3 months. This loan receivable was 
included in other receivables – current assets as at 31 December 2009 (Note 22b).

b.  A loan receivable of $3,289,000 (2008: 3,289,000) is unsecured, interest-free, quasi-equity 
loan. It is not expected to be settled in the foreseeable future.

20. Other Financial Assets
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Movements during the year
 Balance at beginning of the year   3,709 218 3,500 –
 Foreign exchange adjustments   (3) (9) – –
 Additions     – 3,500 – 3,500
 Disposals     (2,500) – (2,500) –

 Balance at end of the year   1,206 3,709 1,000 3,500

Balance is made up of
 Non-current
 Held-to-maturity Investment at amortised cost
 Unquoted Long Term Structured Deposit with 
    effective interest rate at 0% to 9% (2008: 0% to 8%) 
    maturing on 14 February 2012(a)  206 209 – –
 Unquoted Long Term Yield Notes with
    effective interest rate at 2.0% to 2.1%
    maturing on 26 April 2010(b)   – 1,000 – 1,000

 Subtotal     206 1,209 – 1,000
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20. Other Financial Assets (Cont’d)
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Current
 Held-to-maturity Investment at amortised cost
 Unquoted Long Term Yield Notes with
   effective interest rate at 2.0% to 2.1%
   maturing on 26 April 2010(b)   1,000 – 1,000 –
 Available-for-sale at fair value through equity
 Medium Term Notes with coupon rate from
   0% to 5% maturing on 3 April 2009(c)  – 2,500 – 2,500

 Subtotal     1,000 2,500 1,000 2,500

 Total other fi nancial assets   1,206 3,709 1,000 3,500

 None of the fi nancial assets measured at amortised cost were reclassifi ed to fi nancial assets at fair 
value.

a.  The fair value of the unquoted long term structure deposit is deemed to be not reliably 
measurable as the probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably 
assessed as used in the estimating fair values.

b.  The unquoted long term yield note was reclassifi ed from non-current asset to current asset 
during the year. The fair value of the unquoted long term yield note is $988,500 which is based 
on current bid price in an active market.

c.  The Available-for-sale fi nancial asset was disposed on the maturity date.

21. Inventories
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Finished goods for resale   6,794 8,370 5,022 5,119

 Inventories are stated after allowance. 
  Movement in allowance
 Balance at beginning of the year   (48) (74) (48) (74)
 Charged to profi t or loss included in other charges (31) – (31) –
 Reversed to profi t or loss included in cost of sales – 26 – 26

 Balance at end of the year   (79) (48) (79) (48)
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21. Inventories (Cont’d)
 The reversal of the allowance in 2008 is for goods with an estimated increase in net realisable value.
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Decrease (Increase) in inventories of fi nished goods 1,576 (2,801) 97 (866)
 Cost of purchases    16,260 24,894 12,702 21,159
 Inventories written off charged to profi t or loss 
   included in cost of sales   1,183 284 – 254

 There are no inventories pledged as security for liabilities. 

22. Trade and Other Receivables
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Trade receivables
 Outside parties    7,244 6,057 2,960 586
 Subsidiaries (Note 3)    – – 8,421 16,626
 Less: allowance for impairment   (561) (322) (2,337) (1,034)

 Subtotal     6,683 5,735 9,044 16,178

 Other receivables
 Subsidiaries (Note 3)    – – 3,277 3,848
 Tax recoverable    21 405 – –
 Other receivables(a)(b)    3,581 4,946 2,449 4,421
 Less: allowance for impairment   (43) (43) (731) (327)

 Subtotal     3,559 5,308 4,995 7,942

 Total trade and other receivables   10,242 11,043 14,039 24,120

 Movements in above allowance
 Non-related trade and other receivables
 Balance at beginning of the year   365 158 1,361 1,250
 Charge for trade receivables to profi t or loss
   included in other charges   294 188 1,303 62
 Charge for other receivables to profi t or loss
   included in other charges   – 19 404 49
 Used      (55) – – –

 Balance at end of the year   604 365 3,068 1,361
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22. Trade and Other Receivables (Cont’d)
a.  In 2008, other receivables included a prepayment of RMB20 million, equivalent to $4,208,000 

which was part of the consideration for the acquisition of 51% stake in Nanjing Joymain Sci 
and Tech Development Co., Ltd (“Joymain”) upon completion of Joymain’s restructuring 
exercise. However, as Joymain was not able to obtain the necessary approval from the Ministry 
of Commerce within the stipulated time frame agreed by both parties, the Acquisition cannot 
be completed. Hence the Company had formally served a notice to Joymain to terminate the 
Framework Agreement.

  In 2009, the company has successfully recovered this amount together with an interest of 
S$293,000 which was included as other operating income (Note 6) in profi t or loss. These 
amounts were received by Best World (Hunan) Health Sciences Company Limited on behalf 
of the company.

b.  At company level, other receivables included a loan receivable from a subsidiary of $167,000 
(2008: Nil) which is for a period of 3 years from 1 October 2007. The principal of the loan is 
repayable by the end of the expiry term. The agreement for the loan receivable provides that it 
is unsecured and with 3.5% per annum of interest. The interest is repayable at the end of each 
3 months. This loan receivable was included in other receivables – non-current assets in 2008 
(Note 19a).

23. Other Assets
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Deposits     1,408 1,179 1,125 870
 Prepayments    305 211 87 34

 Total other assets    1,713 1,390 1,212 904

24. Cash and Cash Equivalents
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Not restricted in use    34,320 28,851 22,150 16,626
 Cash pledged for bank facilities(a)   1,759 1,759 1,500 1,500

 Cash at end of the year   36,079 30,610 23,650 18,126

 Interest earning balances   20,246 16,941 18,558 15,519

a.  This is for fi xed deposit pledged to certain banks to secure banking facilities granted to the 
group. The banking facilities remain unutilised as at the end of reporting year (Note 28E).

 The rate of interest for the cash on interest earning accounts is between 0.025% and 3.7% (2008 : 
0.2% and 4.2%) per annum. The cash and cash equivalents balances represent short term and long 
term deposits ranging from 7 days to 5 years (2008: 5 days to 5 years) maturity.
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24. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Cont’d)
24A.  Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

  Group
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 Amount as shown above     36,079 30,610
Cash restricted in use over 3 months    (1,759) (1,759)

Cash and cash equivalents for consolidated statement 
  of cash fl ows purposes at end of the year   34,320 28,851

25. Share Capital
        Number of Share
        shares issued capital
  Ordinary Shares of no par value     ’000 $’000

 Balance at 1 January 2008, 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2009  206,250 17,686

 The ordinary shares of no par value which are fully paid carry no right to fi xed income. The company 
is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

 Capital management
 The objectives when managing capital are: to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going 

concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for owners and benefi ts for other stakeholders, 
and to provide an adequate return to owners by pricing products and services commensurately 
with the level of risk. The management sets the amount of capital to meet its requirements and 
the risk taken. There were no changes in the approach to capital management during the year. 
The management manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it where necessary or 
possible in the light of changes in conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. 
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the management may adjust the amount of 
dividends paid to owners, return capital to owners, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

 In order to maintain its listing on the Singapore Stock Exchange it has to have share capital with 
at least a free fl oat of 10% of the shares. The company met the capital requirement on its initial 
listing and the rules limiting treasury share purchases mean it will automatically continue to satisfy 
that requirement, as it did throughout the year. Management receives a report from the registrars 
frequently on substantial share interests showing the non-free fl oat and it demonstrated continuing 
compliance with the 10% limit throughout the year.

 The management does not set a target level of gearing but uses capital opportunistically to support 
its business and to add value for shareholders. The key discipline adopted is to widen the margin 
between the return on capital employed and the cost of that capital. 

 The company has no external borrowings as at 31 December 2009. 

 All reserves classifi ed on the face of the statement of fi nancial position as retained earnings 
represents past accumulated earnings and are distributable. The other reserves are not available for 
cash dividends unless realised.
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26. Finance Leases
       Minimum Finance Present
       payments charges value
  Group and company    $’000 $’000 $’000

 2008
 Minimum lease payments payable
 Due within one year     9 (2) 7
 Due within 2 to 5 years    19 (4) 15

 Total       28 (6) 22

  Net book value of plant and equipment under fi nance leases    19

 There was no outstanding fi nance lease as at 31 December 2009.
 
 It is the group’s policy to lease certain of its plant and equipment under fi nance leases. The average 

lease term was about 7 years. The rate of interest for fi nance leases was about 2.9% (2008: 2.9% 
to 3.6%) per annum. All leases were on a fi xed repayment basis and no arrangements have been 
entered into for contingent rental payments. All leases obligations were denominated in Singapore 
dollars. The obligations under fi nance leases were secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased 
assets.

27. Trade and Other Payables
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Trade payables
 Outside parties and accrued liabilities  6,402 7,637 2,570 3,207
 Provision for penalty(a)   800 800 – –

 Subtotal     7,202 8,437 2,570 3,207

 Other payables
 Subsidiaries (Notes 3 and 18)   – – – 5,714
 Deferred revenue    168 3,026 – –
 Other payables(b)    1,525 1,333 519 398

 Subtotal     1,693 4,359 519 6,112

 Total trade and other payables   8,895 12,796 3,089 9,319

a.  On grounds of prudence, the provision for penalties was made to cover potential infringement 
of local regulations with respect to a foreign subsidiary in 2007.

b.  Included in other payables are provision for restoration cost of $248,000 and $183,000 at 
group level and company level respectively.
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28. Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks
28A.  Classifi cation of Financial Assets and Liabilities
  The following table summarises the carrying amount of fi nancial assets and liabilities recorded 

at the end of the reporting year by FRS 39 categories:
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Financial assets
Cash and bank balances   36,079 30,610 23,650 18,126
Available for sale fi nancial assets  – 2,500 – 2,500
Held-to-maturity investments   1,206 1,209 1,000 1,000
Trade and other receivables   10,221 10,638 17,328 27,600

At end of the year   47,506 44,957 41,978 49,226

Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Finance leases    – 22 – 22
Trade and other payables   7,679 8,970 2,906 9,319

At end of the year   7,679 8,992 2,906 9,341 

  Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these fi nancial statements.

28B.  Financial Risk Management
  The main purpose for holding or issuing fi nancial instruments is to raise and manage the 

fi nances for the entity’s operating, investing and fi nancing activities. There are exposures to 
the fi nancial risks on the fi nancial instruments such as credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk 
comprising interest rate, currency risk and price risk exposures. The management has certain 
practices for the management of fi nancial risks and action to be taken in order to manage the 
fi nancial risks. However these are not formally documented in written form. The guidelines 
included the following:

1.  Minimise interest rate, currency, credit and market risks for all kinds of transactions.

2.  Maximise the use of “natural hedge”: favouring as much as possible the natural off-
setting of sales and costs and payables and receivables denominated in the same 
currency and therefore put in place hedging strategies only for the excess balance. The 
same strategy is pursued with regard to interest rate risk.

3.  All fi nancial risk management activities are carried out and monitored by senior 
management staff.

4.  All fi nancial risk management activities are carried out following good market practices.
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28. Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Cont’d)
28C.  Fair value of Financial Instruments
  The fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities at amortised cost are at a carrying amount that is a 

reasonable approximation of fair value.

28D.  Credit Risk on Financial Assets
  Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk and failures by 

counterparties to discharge their obligations in full or in a timely manner consist principally 
of cash balances with banks, cash equivalents and receivables, certain investments, and 
other fi nancial assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk is: the total of the fair value of 
the fi nancial instruments; the maximum amount the entity could have to pay if the guarantee 
is called on; and the full amount of any loan payable commitment at the end of the reporting 
year. Credit risk on cash balances with banks and derivative fi nancial instruments is limited 
because the counter-parties are entities with acceptable credit ratings. Credit risk on other 
fi nancial assets is limited because the other parties are entities with acceptable credit ratings. 
For credit risk on receivables an ongoing credit evaluation is performed of the fi nancial 
condition of the debtors and a loss from impairment is recognised in profi t or loss. The 
exposure to credit risk is controlled by setting limits on the exposure to individual customers 
and these are disseminated to the relevant persons concerned and compliance is monitored 
by management. There is no signifi cant concentration of credit risk, as the exposure is spread 
over a large number of counter-parties and customers unless otherwise disclosed in the notes 
to the fi nancial statements below.

  All unencumbered bank deposits with the banks licensed by the Monetary Authority of 
Singapore are guaranteed by the Singapore Government until 31 December 2010. At the end 
of the year the balance with the banks in Singapore was $25,479,000. 

  Note 24 discloses the maturity of the cash and cash equivalents balances. 

  As part of the process of setting customer credit limits, different credit terms are used. The 
average credit period generally granted to trade receivable customers is about 30 days (2008: 
30 days). But some customers take a longer period to settle the amounts.

a.  Ageing analysis of the age of trade receivable amounts that are past due as at the end 
of reporting year but not impaired:

     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Trade receivables
  Less than 60 days   344 109 1,128 2,657
  61 to 90 days   1,132 16 1,032 9,538
  Over 90 days   544 89 2,651 1,633

  At end of the year   2,020 214 4,811 13,828
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28. Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Cont’d)
28D.  Credit Risk on Financial Assets (Cont’d)

b.  Ageing analysis as at the end of reporting year of trade receivable amounts that are 
impaired:

     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Trade receivables
   Over 90 days   561 322 2,337 1,034

  At end of the year   561 322 2,337 1,034

 
  The allowance which is disclosed in Note 22 on trade receivables is based on individual 

accounts totalling $561,000 (2008: $322,000) that are determined to be impaired at 
the end of reporting year. These are not secured.

  Other receivables are normally with no fi xed terms and therefore there is no maturity.

  Concentration of trade receivable customers as at the end of reporting year:
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Top 1 customer   1,552 443 4,887 10,739
  Top 2 customers   2,136 785 6,439 12,053
  Top 3 customers   2,718 1,121 7,274 12,939

28E.  Liquidity Risk
  The following table analyses the non-derivative fi nancial liabilities by remaining contractual 

maturity (contractual and undiscounted cash fl ows):
 
       Less than 2–5
       1 year years Total
  Group    $’000 $’000 $’000

Non-derivative fi nancial liabilities 
2009
Trade and other payables    7,679 – 7,679

At end of the year    7,679 – 7,679

2008
Gross fi nance lease obligation   9 19 28
Trade and other payables    8,970 – 8,970

At end of the year    8,979 19 8,998
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28. Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Cont’d)
28E.  Liquidity Risk (Cont’d)

       Less than 2–5
        1 year years Total
  Company    $’000 $’000 $’000

Non-derivative fi nancial liabilities
2009
Trade and other payables    2,906 – 2,906

At end of the year    2,906 – 2,906

2008
Gross fi nance lease obligation   9 19 28
Trade and other payables    9,319 – 9,319

At end of the year    9,328 19 9,347

  The above amounts disclosed in the maturity analysis are the contractual undiscounted cash 
fl ows and such undiscounted cash fl ows differ from the amount included in the statement of 
fi nancial position. When the counterparty has a choice of when an amount is paid, the liability 
is included on the basis of the earliest date on which it can be required to pay. For fi nancial 
guarantee contracts the maximum earliest period in which the guarantee could be called is 
used.

 
  The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the fi nancial liabilities. 

The average credit period taken to settle trade payables is about 30 days (2008: 30 days). The 
other payables are with short-term durations. Apart from the classifi cation of the assets in the 
statement of fi nancial position, no further analysis is deemed necessary. 

  The liquidity risk refers to the diffi culty in meeting obligations associated with fi nancial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another fi nancial asset. It is expected that all the liabilities 
will be paid at their contractual maturity. In order to meet such cash commitments the 
operating activity is expected to generate suffi cient cash infl ows. In addition, the fi nancial 
assets are held for which there is a liquid market and that are readily available to meet liquidity 
needs.

  Group
        2009 2008
  Bank facilities     $’000 $’000

Undrawn borrowing facilities     6,935 4,217

  The undrawn borrowing facilities are available for operating activities and to settle other 
commitments. Borrowing facilities are maintained to ensure funds are available for the 
operations. A monthly schedule showing the maturity of fi nancial liabilities and unused bank 
facilities is provided to management to assist them in monitoring the liquidity risk.
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28. Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Cont’d)
28F.  Interest Rate Risk
  The interest rate risk exposure is mainly from changes in fi xed rate and fl oating interest rates 

from fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities which are not signifi cant. The interest rates are 
disclosed in the Notes 20 and 24.

28G.  Foreign Currency Risks
  Analysis of amounts denominated in non-functional currency:

       Trade Other
       and other fi nancial
      Cash receivables assets Total
  Group   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Financial assets
At 31 December 2009
Australian Dollars   22 1 – 23
Brunei Dollars    15 – – 15
China Yuan Renminbi   4,182 1,314 – 5,496
Hong Kong Dollars   769 20 – 789
Indonesian Rupiahs   815 2,450 – 3,265
Korean Won    41 – – 41
Malaysian Ringgits   2,391 1,374 206 3,971
New Taiwan Dollars   780 45 – 825
Thai Bahts    1,045 380 – 1,425
United States Dollars   830 2,298 – 3,128

      10,890 7,882 206 18,978

At 31 December 2008
Australian Dollars   22 – – 22
Brunei Dollars    2 5 – 7
China Yuan Renminbi   2,104 175 – 2,279
Hong Kong Dollars   245 23 – 268
Indonesian Rupiahs   4,437 2,783 – 7,220
Malaysian Ringgits   2,518 1,871 209 4,598
New Taiwan Dollars   645 177 – 822
Thai Bahts    697 10 – 707
United States Dollars   598 8 – 606

      11,268 5,052 209 16,529
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28. Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Cont’d)
28G.  Foreign Currency Risks (Cont’d)
  Analysis of amounts denominated in non-functional currency:

        Trade
        and other
        payables Total
  Group     $’000 $’000

Financial liabilities
At 31 December 2009
Australian Dollars     7 7
Brunei Dollars      7 7
China Yuan Renminbi     325 325
Hong Kong Dollars     91 91
Indonesian Rupiahs     710 710
Korean Won      2 2
Malaysian Ringgits     609 609
New Taiwan Dollars     630 630
Thai Bahts      982 982
United States Dollars     103 103

        3,466 3,466

At 31 December 2008
Australian Dollars     4 4
Brunei Dollars      4 4
China Yuan Renminbi     209 209
Hong Kong Dollars     73 73
Indonesian Rupiahs     1,832 1,832
Malaysian Ringgits     1,236 1,236
New Taiwan Dollars     393 393
Thai Bahts      224 224
United States Dollars     584 584

        4,559 4,559
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28. Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Cont’d)
28G.  Foreign Currency Risks (Cont’d)
  Analysis of amounts denominated in non-functional currency: (Cont’d)

        Trade
        and other
       Cash receivables Total
  Company    $’000 $’000 $’000

Financial assets
At 31 December 2009
China Yuan Renminbi    1 1,314 1,315
Indonesian Rupiahs    1 – 1
Korean Won     1 – 1
Thai Bahts     – 167 167
United States Dollars    507 2,298 2,805

       510 3,779 4,289

At 31 December 2008
Australian Dollars    – 6 6
China Yuan Renminbi    – 4,208 4,208
Indonesian Rupiahs    1 – 1
Thai Bahts     – 191 191
United States Dollars    261 711 972

       262 5,116 5,378

        Trade
        and other
        payables Total
  Company     $’000 $’000

Financial liabilities
At 31 December 2009
Malaysian Ringgits     144 144
United States Dollars     103 103

        247 247

At 31 December 2008
Australian Dollars     2 2
China Yuan Renminbi     4,519 4,519
Malaysian Ringgits     139 139
United States Dollars     584 584

        5,244 5,244
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28. Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Cont’d)
28G.  Foreign Currency Risks (Cont’d)
  There is exposure to foreign currency risk as part of its normal business.

  Group
        2009 2008
  Sensitivity analysis     $’000 $’000

A hypothetical 10% increase in the exchange rate of the functional 
  currency $ against all other currencies would have an 
  adverse effect on group profi t before tax of   (128) (103)
A hypothetical 10% increase in the exchange rate of the functional
  currency $ against the United State Dollars would have an
  adverse effect on group profi t before tax of   (275) (2)
A hypothetical 10% increase in the exchange rate of the functional
  currency $ against the Indonesian Rupiahs would have an
  adverse effect on group profi t before tax of   (232) (490)
A hypothetical 10% increase in the exchange rate of the functional
  currency $ against the Malaysian Ringgits would have an
  adverse effect on group profi t before tax of   (306) (302)
A hypothetical 10% increase in the exchange rate of the functional
  currency $ against the China Yuan Renminbi would have an
  adverse effect on group profi t before tax of   (470) (188)

  The hypothetical changes in exchange rates are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs). The sensitivity analysis is disclosed for each currency to which the 
entity has signifi cant exposure. The analysis above has been carried out on the following 
basis:

1.  There are no hedged transactions.
 
  In management’s opinion, the above sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the foreign 

currency risks as the historical exposure does not refl ect the exposures in future.

28H.  Equity Price Risk
  There are investments in medium term notes (see Note 20) as at year end. The fair value of 

their investments is based on current bid prices in an active market. Such investments are 
exposed to both currency risk and changes in fair value risk. 

  Sensitivity analysis: The effect on post tax profi t is not signifi cant.
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29. Capital Commitments
 Estimated amounts committed at the end of the reporting year for future capital expenditure but not 

recognised in the fi nancial statements are as follows:
  Group and Company
         2009 2008

       $’000 $’000

 Commitment to take up shares in
 Best World (Qingdao) Health Sciences Company Ltd (US$9,600,000)  13,476 –
 Best World (Hunan) Health Sciences Company Ltd (US$5,536,000)(a)  – 8,000

a. Best World (Hunan) Health Sciences Company Ltd has been disposed during the year.

30. Operating Lease Payment Commitments
 At the end of the reporting year the total of future minimum lease payments under noncancellable 

operating leases are as follows:
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Not later than one year   2,576 2,049 1,268 667
 Later than one year and not later than fi ve years  2,403 2,346 1,067 460
 Later than fi ve years    – 37 – –

 Total      4,979 4,432 2,335 1,127

 Rental expenses for the year   2,423 2,054 872 772

 
 Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain offi ce premises and retail outlets. The 

lease rental terms are negotiated for an average term of three years and rentals are not subject to an 
escalation clause.

31. Contingent Liabilities
     Group Company
      2009 2008 2009 2008
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Banker’s guarantee in favour of a third party  90 90 90 90
 Undertaking to support subsidiaries with defi cit  – – 2,048 2,574
 Corporate guarantee in favour of a fi nancial institution
   for banking facility granted to a subsidiary – – 1,404 –
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32. Changes and Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards
 For the year ended 31 December 2009 the following new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting 

Standards were adopted. The new or revised standards did not require any material modifi cation of 
the measurement methods or the presentation in the fi nancial statements. 

FRS No. Title

FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised)

FRS 18 Revenue (Amendments to)

FRS 23 Borrowing Costs (Amendments to)

FRS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and FRS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements – Puttable Financial Instruments and 
Obligations Arising on Liquidation (Amendments to) (*)

FRS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements – Cost of an Investment in 
a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate (Amendments to)

FRS 102 Share-based Payment – Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
(Amendments to) (*)

FRS 103 Business Combinations and consecutive amendments in other FRSs (Revised)

FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments to)

FRS 108 Operating Segments

INT FRS 109 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and FRS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement – Embedded Derivatives
(Amendments to) (*)

INT FRS 113 Customer Loyalty Programs (*)

INT FRS 116 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

INT FRS 117 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

INT FRS 118 Transfers of Assets from Customers (*)

(*) Not relevant to the entity.

 The main objective of revising FRS 1 was to aggregate information in the fi nancial statements on 
the basis of shared characteristics. All owner changes in equity is presented in the statement of 
changes in equity, separately from non-owner changes in equity. It does not change the recognition, 
measurement or disclosure of specifi c transactions and other events required by other FRSs. It 
introduces a requirement to include in a complete set of fi nancial statements, a statement of fi nancial 
position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period whenever the entity retrospectively 
applies an accounting policy or makes a retrospective restatement of items in its fi nancial statements, 
or when it reclassifi es items in its fi nancial statements.
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33. Future Changes in Financial Reporting Standards
 The following new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting Standards that have been issued will 

be effective in future. The transfer to the new or revised standards from the effective dates are not 
expected to result in material adjustments to the fi nancial position, results operations, or cash fl ows 
for the following year.

FRS No. Title Effective date for periods 
beginning on or after

FRS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
(Amendments to)

01.07.2009

FRS 38  Intangible Assets (Amendments to) 01.07.2009

FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 
– Eligible Hedged Item (Amendments to) (*)

01.07.2009

FRS 102 Share-based Payment (Amendments to) (*) 01.07.2009

FRS 103 Business Combinations (Revised) 01.07.2009

FRS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations (Amendments to) (*)

01.07.2009

INT FRS 109 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives 
(Amendments to) (*)

01.07.2009

INT FRS 116 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
(Amendments to)

01.07.2009

INT FRS 117 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners 01.07.2009

INT FRS 118 Transfers of Assets from Customers (*) 01.07.2009

FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments to) 01.01.2010

FRS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments to) 01.01.2010

FRS 17 Leases (Amendments to) 01.01.2010

FRS 36 Impairment of Assets (Amendments to) 01.01.2010

FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
(Amendments to)

01.01.2010

FRS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations (Amendments to) (*)

01.01.2010

FRS 108 Operating Segments (Amendments to) 01.01.2010

(*) Not relevant to the entity.
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Location      Description Existing use Tenure of land

37 Kallang Pudding Road  10-storey building Packaging facility/ Freehold land
Block B Tong Lee Building   Warehouse
#05-03/04
Singapore 349315

Block 726 Ang Mo Kio  2-storey building Business Centre Leasehold land 
Avenue 6 #01-4150    expiring on
Singapore 560726    1 October 2079

No. 11 Jalan Radin Anum  4-storey building Offi ce and Leasehold land
Bandar Baru Seri    Business Centre expiring on
Petaling 57000 Kuala Lumpur   5 April 2078
Malaysia

141 Jalan Danga   3-storey building Offi ce and Freehold land
Taman Nusa Bestari Dua   Business Centre
81300 Johor Bahru
Malaysia

Major Properties of the Group

95COME ON BOARD



Class of shares: Ordinary shares fully paid
Voting rights: One vote per share
No. of issued and paid-up shares: 206,249,997

Distribution of Shareholders by Size of Shareholdings
     No. of % of No. of % of
Size of shareholdings   shareholders shareholders shares shareholdings

1 – 999     86 7.13 33,276 0.02
1,000 – 10,000    536 44.44 2,721,020 1.32
10,001 – 1,000,000   564 46.77 37,566,237 18.21
1,000,001 and above   20 1.66 165,929,464 80.45

Grand Total     1,206 100.00 206,249,997 100.00

Percentage of Shareholding in the Hands of Public
As at 18 March 2010, approximately 47.41% of the Company’s issued ordinary shares is held by the public 
and, therefore, Rule 723 of the Listing Manual is complied with.

Twenty Largest Shareholders
       No. of % of
Name of shareholders     shares shareholdings

1 D2 INVESTMENT PTE LTD    75,000,000 36.36
2 DOREEN TAN NEE MOI     12,152,000 5.89
3 DORA HOAN BENG MUI    11,552,000 5.60
4 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES   11,400,500 5.53
5 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMS PTE LTD    9,695,250 4.70
6 HONG LEONG FINANCE NOMINEES PL   6,397,750 3.10
7 UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD    6,162,000 2.99
8 LIONG MEE SAN MRS BOON SUAN LEE   5,588,000 2.71
9 BOON SUAN LEE     4,690,000 2.27
10 PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD    4,469,750 2.17
11 OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LTD    2,957,350 1.43
12 WEE KHENG HOE JASON    2,600,000 1.26
13 CITIBANK NOMS S’PORE PTE LTD    2,406,250 1.17
14 MORGAN STANLEY ASIA (S’PORE)    1,998,364 0.97
15 DBS NOMINEES PTE LTD    1,918,250 0.93
16 KOH BOON OOI     1,750,000 0.85
17 ANG CHAI CHENG     1,500,750 0.73
18 CHUA SIOK LAN     1,250,000 0.61
19 WEE KWEE HUAY HELENE    1,241,250 0.60
20 CHANG GRACE SHAIN-JOU    1,200,000 0.58

TOTAL       165,929,464 80.45

 

Shareholding Statistics
As at 18 March 2010
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Register of Substantial Shareholders as at 18 March 2010
     Direct interest  Deemed interest
     no. of shares % no. of shares %

D2 Investment Pte Ltd   75,000,000 36.36 – –
Hoan Beng Mui Dora   12,052,000 5.84 75,100,000(1) 36.41
Tan Nee Moi Doreen   12,152,000 5.89 75,000,000(2) 36.36
Li Lihui     100,000 0.048 12,052,000(3) 5.84

(1) Hoan Beng Mui Dora is deemed to be interested in 75,000,000 shares held by D2 Investment Pte Ltd and 100,000 shares held by an 
immediate family member, Li Lihui.

(2) Tan Nee Moi Doreen is deemed to be interested in 75,000,000 shares held by D2 Investment Pte Ltd.
(3) Li Lihui is deemed to be interested in 12,052,000 shares held by an immediate family member, Hoan Beng Mui Dora.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 1 Changi 
North Street 1, Lobby 2, Singapore 498789 on Friday, 30 April 2010 at 10.30 a.m. to transact the following 
businesses:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the fi nancial 
year ended 31 December 2009 and the Directors’ Report and the Auditors’ 
Report thereon.

Resolution 1

2. To declare a fi nal one-tier tax-exempt dividend of 0.50 Singapore cents 
per ordinary share for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2009 and a 
special one-tier tax-exempt dividend of 0.50 Singapore cents per ordinary 
share.

Resolution 2

3. To approve payment of directors’ fees of S$120,000 for the fi nancial year 
ended 31 December 2009 (2008: S$120,000).

Resolution 3

4. To re-elect the following Directors retiring by rotation pursuant to Article 89 
of the Company’s Articles of Association:

(i) Mr Ravindran Ramasamy
 Mr Ravindran Ramasamy, if re-elected as Director of the Company 

will remain as the Chairman of Nominating Committee and member 
of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee and will be 
considered as independent for purposes of Rule 704(8) of the Listing 
Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

Resolution 4

(ii) Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi
 Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi, if re-elected as Director of the Company will 

remain as the Chairman of Board of Directors’ and will be considered 
as an Non-Independent Director.

Resolution 5

5. To re-appoint Messrs RSM Chio Lim LLP as Auditors of the Company and 
to authorise the Directors to fi x their remuneration.

Resolution 6

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and if thought fi t, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary 
Resolutions, with or without any modifi cations:

6. Authority to issue shares
That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 (the “Act”) and 
the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, 
approval be and is hereby given to the Directors to:

Resolution 7

a. issue shares in the capital of the Company (“shares”) whether by 
way of rights (including renounceable and non-renounceable rights), 
bonus or otherwise; and/or

b. make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) 
that might or would require shares to be issued, including but not 
limited to the creation and issue of (as well as adjustments to) 

Notice of Annual General Meeting
Best World International Limited
Company Registration No. 199006030Z
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
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warrants , debentures or other instruments convertible into shares, at any 
time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the 
Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fi t provided that

i. (subject to sub-paragraph (ii) pertaining to pro rata renounceable 
rights issue) the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant 
to this Resolution (including shares to be issued in pursuance of 
Instruments made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) does not 
exceed 50% of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury 
shares) in the capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance 
with sub-paragraph (iii) below), of which the aggregate number of 
shares to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to shareholders 
of the Company (including shares to be issued in pursuance of 
Instruments made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) does not 
exceed 20% of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury 
shares) in the capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance 
with sub-paragraph (iii) below);

ii. in relation to pro rata renounceable rights issue, the aggregate 
number of shares to be issued pursuant to this Resolution does not 
exceed 100% of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury 
shares) in the capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance 
with sub-paragraph (iii) below);

iii. (subject to such method of calculation as may be prescribed by the 
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”)) for the 
purpose of determining the aggregate number of shares that may 
be issued under sub-paragraphs (i) and (ii) above, the percentage of 
issued shares shall be calculated based on the total number of issued 
shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company as 
at the date this Resolution is passed after adjusting for new shares 
arising from the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities 
or share options or vesting of share awards which are outstanding or 
subsisting at the time this Resolution is passed and any subsequent 
bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of the Company’s shares;

iv. in exercising the authority conferred by this Resolution, the Company 
shall comply with the provisions of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST 
(including supplemental measures thereto) for the time being in force 
(unless such compliance has been waived by the SGX-ST) and the 
Articles of Association for the time being of the Company; and

v. unless earlier revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, 
the authority conferred by this Resolution shall continue in force until 
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or 
the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company 
is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier. 

 (See Explanatory Note 1)
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7. Authority to issue shares (other than on a pro-rata basis) with a maximum 
discount of 20%
That subject to and pursuant to the share issue mandate in Resolution 7 
above being obtained, authority be and is hereby given to the Directors 
to issue new shares other than on a pro-rata basis to shareholders of the 
Company at an issue price per new share which shall be determined by 
the Directors in their absolute discretion provided that such price shall 
not represent more than a 20% discount for new shares to the weighted 
average price per share determined in accordance with the requirements 
of the SGX-ST. 
(See Explanatory Note 2)

Resolution 8

8. Proposed renewal of the Share Buyback Mandate (on a poll taken)
“That:
a. for the purposes of the Act, the exercise by the Directors of the 

Company of all the powers of the Company to purchase or otherwise 
acquire the issued ordinary shares in the capital of the Company 
(“Shares”) not exceeding in aggregate the Prescribed Limit (as 
hereinafter defi ned), at such price(s) as may be determined by the 
Directors of the Company from time to time up to the Maximum Price 
(as hereinafter defi ned), whether by way of:

Resolution 9

i.  market purchases (each a “Market Purchase”) on the Singapore 
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”); and/or

ii. off-market purchases (each an “Off-Market Purchase”) effected 
otherwise than on the SGX-ST in accordance with any equal 
access schemes as may be determined or formulated by the 
Directors of the Company as they consider fi t, which schemes 
shall satisfy all the conditions prescribed by the Act, and 
otherwise in accordance with all other provisions of the Act 
and Listing Manual of the SGX-ST as may for the time being 
be applicable,

be and is hereby authorised and approved generally and unconditionally 
(the “Share Buyback Mandate”);

b. unless varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting, the 
authority conferred on the Directors of the Company pursuant to the 
Share Buyback Mandate may be exercised by the Directors at any 
time and from time to time during the period commencing from the 
passing of this Resolution and expiring on the earlier of:

i. the date on which the next annual general meeting of the 
Company (“AGM”) is held or required by law to be held;

ii. the date on which the share buybacks pursuant to the Share 
Buyback Mandate are carried out to the full extent mandated; or

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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iii. the date on which the authority contained in the Share Buyback 
Mandate is varied or revoked;

c. in this Resolution:

 “Prescribed Limit” means 10% of the issued ordinary share capital of 
the Company (excluding treasury shares) as at the date of passing 
of this Resolution unless the Company has effected a reduction of 
the share capital of the Company in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the Act, at any time during the Relevant Period, in which 
event the issued ordinary share capital of the Company shall be taken 
to be the amount of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company 
as altered (excluding any treasury shares that may be held by the 
Company from time to time);

 “Relevant Period” means the period commencing from the date on 
which the last AGM was held and required by law to held and expiring 
on the date the next AGM is held or is required by law to be held, 
whichever is the earlier, after the date of this Resolution; and

 “Maximum Price” in relation to a Share to be purchased, means an 
amount (excluding brokerage, stamp duties, applicable goods and 
services tax and other related expenses) not exceeding:

(i) in the case of a Market Purchase: 105% of the Average 
Closing Price; and 

(ii) in the case of an Off-Market Purchase: 120% of the Average 
Closing Price, where: 

 “Average Closing Price” means the average of the closing market 
prices of a Share over the last fi ve market days, on which transactions 
in the Shares were recorded, preceding the day of the Market 
Purchase, and deemed to be adjusted for any corporate action that 
occurs after the relevant 5-day period; and

d. the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to 
complete and do all such acts and things (including executing such 
documents as may be required) as they may consider expedient or 
necessary to give effect to the transactions contemplated by this 
Resolution.”

 (See Explanatory Note 3)
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9. Authority to grant options and to issue shares under BWI Performance 
Share Scheme
“That authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to 
offer and grant options from time to time in accordance with the provisions 
of the BWI Performance Share Scheme (the “PSS”), and, pursuant to 
Section 161 of the Act, to allot and issue from time to time such number 
of shares in the capital of the Company as may be required to be issued 
pursuant to the exercise of options granted under the PSS, provided that 
the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to the PSS shall 
not exceed 15% of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury 
shares) of the Company from time to time, as determined in accordance 
with the provisions of the PSS.”
(See Explanatory Note 4)

Resolution 10

10. To transact any other ordinary business which may be properly transacted 
at an Annual General Meeting.

NOTICE OF BOOKS CLOSURE
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will 
be closed on 11 May 2010 to determine the shareholders’ entitlements to the proposed dividends. Duly 
completed registrable transfers of shares received by the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Barbinder 
Share Registration Services (a business division of Tricor Singapore Pte. Ltd.) at 8 Cross Street, #11-
00 PWC Building, Singapore 048424, up to 5.00 p.m. on 10 May 2010 will be registered to determine 
shareholders’ entitlements to the proposed dividends. Subject as aforesaid, shareholders whose securities 
accounts with The Central Depository (Pte) Limited are credited with ordinary shares in the capital of the 
Company as at 5.00 p.m. on the Books Closure Date will be entitled to the dividends.

The proposed dividends, if approved by the members at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 24 
May 2010.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

CHAN WAN MEI (MS)
LIM MEE FUN (MS)
Company Secretaries
15 April 2010

Singapore

Notice of Annual General Meeting
Best World International Limited
Company Registration No. 199006030Z
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
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Explanatory Notes:
1. Resolution 7, if passed, will authorise and empower the Directors of the Company from the date of the above Meeting until the next 

Annual General Meeting to issue shares in the capital of the Company (including shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments 
made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) up to an amount not exceeding in aggregate 50 percent of the total number of issued 
shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company of which the aggregate number of shares to be issued other than on 
a pro-rata basis to shareholders of the Company (including shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant 
to this Resolution) does not exceed 20 percent of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the 
Company at the time this Resolution is passed, for such purposes as they consider would be in the interests of the Company. This 
authority will, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, expire at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

 This proposed ordinary resolution, if passed, will also authorise and empower Directors of the Company to issue up to 100% of the 
Company’s issued share capital (excluding treasury shares) via a pro-rata renounceable rights issue. This is one of the new measures 
introduced by the Singapore Exchange Limited, in consultation with the Monetary Authority of Singapore, on 20 February 2009 to 
accelerate and facilitate listed issuers’ fund raising efforts and will be in effect until 31 December 2010. This mandate will provide 
the Directors with an opportunity to raise funds and avoid prolonged market exposure by reducing the time taken for shareholders’ 
approval, in the event the need arises. Minority shareholders’ interests are mitigated as all shareholders have equal opportunities to 
participate and can dispose their entitlements through trading of nil-paid rights if they do not wish to subscribe for their rights shares. 
This mandate is conditional upon the Company:

 (i)  making periodic announcements on the use of the proceeds as and when the funds are materially disbursed; and

 (ii)  providing a status report on the use of proceeds in the annual report.

 For the purpose of Resolution 7, the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) is based on the Company’s total 
number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) at the time this proposed ordinary resolution is passed after adjusting for new 
shares arising from the conversion or exercise of Instruments or the vesting of share awards outstanding or subsisting at the time 
when this proposed ordinary resolution is passed and any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of shares.

2. Resolution 8, if passed, will allow the Company to undertake placements of new shares on a non pro-rata basis at discounts up to 
20%. This is also one of the new measures introduced by the Singapore Exchange Limited, in consultation with the Monetary Authority 
of Singapore, on 20 February 2009 to accelerate and facilitate listed issuers’ fund raising efforts and will be in effect until 31 December 
2010.

3. Resolution 9, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company from the date of the above Meeting to purchase or otherwise 
acquire Shares by way of Market Purchases or Off-Market Purchases on an equal access system, provided that the aggregate 
number of Shares to be purchased or acquired under the Share Buyback Mandate does not exceed the Prescribed Limit, and at such 
price or prices as may be determined by the Directors of the Company from time to time up to but not exceeding the Maximum Price. 
The information relating to this proposed Ordinary Resolution is set out in the Appendix enclosed together with the Annual Report. 

4. Resolution 10, if passed, will authorise and empower the Directors of the Company to offer and grant options under the PSS and to 
allot and issue shares pursuant to the exercise of such shares under the PSS not exceeding 15% of the total number of issued shares 
(excluding treasury shares) of the Company from time to time.

Notes:
1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend and 

vote in his stead. 
2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
3. If the appointor is a corporation, the proxy must be executed under seal or the hand of its duly authorised offi cer or attorney.
4. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered offi ce of the Company at 1 Changi North Street 1, Lobby 2, 

Singapore 498789 not later than 48 hours before the time appointed for the Meeting.
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